
 

 

Town of Lyman 
Select Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

Monday February 6th, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 
Welcome to the February 6th, 2023, Regular Meeting of The Lyman Board of Selectmen. 

This meeting is a public proceeding and is being recorded. 
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 
a. Michelle Feliccitti – Question regarding Bunganut Park 

 
ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 

a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board 
b. Mail                
c. Complaints 

 

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
a. Review / Approve meeting minutes 1/17/2023 
b. Review / Approve meeting minutes 1/18/2023 

 

ITEM #4 SIGN WARRANTS  
a. Payroll Warrant #33 in the amount of $24,204.23 
b. Payroll Warrant #34 in the amount of $25,142.31 
c. Accounts Payable Warrant #35 (FY2023) in the amount of $624,105.55 

 

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Classification / compensation study. Review references. Award RFP to vendor.  
b. Franchise Agreement – Update from Shelly 

 

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS  
a. Road Commissioner –  
b. Fire Chief –  
c. Kennebunk Pond Beach Committee – Dave Alves Liaison Report/update 
d. Treasurer – Expense Report 2-2-23 
e. CEO –  
f. Tax Clerk –  
g. Town Hall Expansion Committee –  
h. Budget Committee – Quarterly Report 
i. Other  -  

 
ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 

a. Discuss scheduling Budget Workshops  
b. RSU #57 Board member opening, Review 2 applicants.  
c. ARPA Committee – Final recommendations and reports 
d. Schedule Annual Town Meeting for June 
e. Reschedule Select Board meeting on 2/20/23 (Holiday) 
f. Assessor request for training services, review agreement 
g. Discuss procedure around key for lock box 
h. Upcoming Training National Incident Management System (NIMS) 

 
 

OTHER 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
ADJOURN 



From: Michelle Feliccitti
To: Selectmen Board Clerk
Subject: next meeting, can I get on agenda?
Date: Wednesday, January 25, 2023 10:58:26 AM
Attachments: BUNGANUT PARK.docx

Re Bunganut...here is a Word Doc to attach for the Board re expenses and use at Bunganut
that I would like to ask some questions about :)

-- 
Michelle Feliccitti, RPR
"A Generous Heart, Kind Speech, and a Life of Service and Compassion are the Things Which
Renew Humanity"

Gaige & Feliccitti, LLC
Court Reporting and Video Conferencing Services
Registered Professional Reporters

75 York Woodford Street
Portland, Maine  04101
(207) 854-5296
www.gandfreporting.com
scheduling@gandfreporting.com

"We can connect you anywhere in the world with video conferencing
depositions and reporters."

Gaige & Feliccitti, LLC, your One-Stop-Shop!

STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY:  This communication, together with any attachments hereto or links contained herein, is for the sole use of
the intended recipient(s) and may contain information that is proprietary, confidential or privileged. If you are not the intended recipient, you are
hereby notified that any review, disclosure, copying, dissemination, distribution or use of this communication is strictly prohibited.  If you are not the
intended recipient, please notify the sender immediately and delete the original and all copies of the communication, along with any attachments hereto
or links herein, from your system.

ITEM #1: (a.) Michelle Feliccitti - Questions re: Bunganut Park

mailto:mfeliccitti@gmail.com
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
http://www.gaigereporting.com/
mailto:scheduling@gandfreporting.com

BUNGANUT PARK



Rev Exp

FY 23 31,541.00 (41,000.00)

FY 22 22,743.50 (37,000.00)

FY 21 21,338.75 (36,000.00)

FY 20 25,673.75 (35,000.00)

FY 19 23,434.50 (25,000.00)

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Below are the suggested new rates for the 2022 season at Bunganut Lake Park.

		Bunganut Park Rate Comparison

		 

		 



		Gate Fees

		2021

		2022



		Lyman Residents

		Free

		Free



		Non Residents

		 

		 



		Day pass for vehichle of 8 - $3 per additional person

		15

		18



		Day Pass for Seniors & Veterans

		5

		10



		Motorsycle

		5

		10



		Walkein 

		5

		5



		After 4:00 pass

		5

		10



		1 Week Pass

		40

		50



		Season Pass

		60

		75



		Group Rate For the Pines under 100 people- $3 per person over 100

		200

		250





 

As discussed the Sanford-Springvale YMCA is requesting a base rate for the Park Management of $41,000 for the next three years 2022, 2023 and 2024.  with the understanding that due to the volatility in the labor force and job market we reserve the right to request additional costs in 2023 and 2024 due to labor expenses. This request will occur in writing and will occur in the early part of 2023 and 2024 respectively .

If this is approved I will incert the details into the contract for final  signatures and also make the adjustment to the brochure.  

_____________________________________________________________________________

Here are the numbers for 2021.  I do not have the details for 2020. I hope this helps.  

Totals-

Passengers:                5138                                               

Cars:                          2137                                               

Residential                773

Seasonal Pass:                   278                                  

Non-Residential Pass:      1081

________________________________________________________________________

[image: Table

Description automatically generated]

[image: Table

Description automatically generated]

image1.jpeg



image2.jpeg





BUNGANUT PARK 

Rev Exp 

FY 23 31,541.00 (41,000.00) 

FY 22 22,743.50 (37,000.00) 

FY 21 21,338.75 (36,000.00) 

FY 20 25,673.75 (35,000.00) 

FY 19 23,434.50 (25,000.00) 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

Below are the suggested new rates for the 2022 season at Bunganut Lake Park. 

Bunganut Park Rate Comparison 

Gate Fees 2021 2022 

Lyman Residents Free Free 

Non Residents 

Day pass for vehichle of 8 - $3 per additional person 15 18 

Day Pass for Seniors & Veterans 5 10 

Motorsycle 5 10 

Walkein 5 5 

After 4:00 pass 5 10 

1 Week Pass 40 50 

Season Pass 60 75 

Group Rate For the Pines under 100 people- $3 per person over 100 200 250 

As discussed the Sanford-Springvale YMCA is requesting a base rate for the Park Management 

of $41,000 for the next three years 2022, 2023 and 2024.  with the understanding that due to the 

volatility in the labor force and job market we reserve the right to request additional costs in 

2023 and 2024 due to labor expenses. This request will occur in writing and will occur in the 

early part of 2023 and 2024 respectively . 

If this is approved I will incert the details into the contract for final  signatures and also make the 

adjustment to the brochure.   

_____________________________________________________________________________ 



Here are the numbers for 2021.  I do not have the details for 2020. I hope this helps. 

Totals- 

Passengers:  5138

Cars:  2137

Residential  773 

Seasonal Pass:  278

Non-Residential Pass:  1081 

________________________________________________________________________ 





ITEM #2: (b.) Mail











Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday January 17, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 1 of 5 

Selectboard members present: Ralph “Rusty” Blackington (Chair), Thomas Hatch (Vice Chair) 
David Alves (Via Zoom), Jessica Picard, John Tibbetts 
Selectboard members absent: None 

ITEM #1 SPECIAL OFFERS/ PRESENTATIONS 
None 

ITEM #2 HEARING OF DELEGATIONS / PUBLIC INPUT 
a. Public Input – Public in attendance will have up to 5 minutes to address the Board

o Michelle Feliccitti – Inquiry on Lyman Emblem and Bunganut Parks & Recs
Michelle Feliccitti – Discussed with the board a suggestion of getting an emblem for Town meeting 
room. She recommends offering to seniors or a school an opportunity to participate in a competition to 
present a graphic design or drawing for the Town and perhaps contact the arts department in the 
schools or a college. She also discussed the park expenses at Bunganut Park. She reviewed over the last 
five years there has been a revenue loss with park passes vs YMCA services. She also found most people 
using the Park are non-residents based off the Park Passes. She recommends a parks and recs director 
and addressing some of the accessibility issues at the park. She recommends having a community space 
available for gatherings and maybe establishing a community committee.  
John Tibbets – States the board had looked into adding things such as disc golf, vending machines, and 
ways to make the park profitable and work on improvements, but the issue at the time was a question 
of how to manage the park.  
b. Mail • MMA     • SMPDC
c. Complaints -none

ITEM #3 MINUTES 
Review/ approve meeting minutes 1/3/2023 
David makes a motion to approve. Jessica Picard seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

ITEM #4 SIGN WARRANTS 
a. Payroll Warrant #31 in the amount of $22,848.26

David makes a motion to approve. Jessica Picard seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0
b. Accounts Payable Warrant #32 (FY2023) in the amount of $89,097.00

David makes a motion to approve. Jessica Picard seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

ITEM #5 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
a. Health Officer. Tabled from last meeting.

Thomas Hatch – States this was discussed at the Fire Commission meeting from last week. There
were discussions concerning the chief being pulled in many different directions and not knowing
exactly how much this position could entail. He suggested putting this out on the website or MMA
to seek a retired nurse or someone with a healthcare background that may want to volunteer.

ITEM #6 DEPARTMENT AND COMMITTEE REPORTS 
a. Road Commissioner –

Brad Nikel – Requests information to be posted on the Town website regarding state statute and
pushing snow into roadways. Also, the LED sign brightness is set too bright, and he has received
some complaints about this.

DRAFT
ITEM #3 (a.) Minutes 1/17/2023



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday January 17, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 2 of 5 

b. Fire Chief – Request for funds, see email.
Thomas Hatch – Explains there was some facility maintenance necessary for clearing of a
drainage pipe and pumping of a catch basin. The total cost was $3121.20, making Lyman’s share of
50% $1560.60. The second request was to have an electrician move the reverse osmosis water
system and Ansul fire protection system electrical circuits to the emergency electrical panel. A total
of $2000, with Lyman’s share of 50% equal to $1000.00. Both requests to come out of the GMFR
Building Capital account.
Thomas Hatch – Makes a motion to grant the Fire chief the amount of $1,560.60 for drainage pipe
pumping and $1,000 for electrical work.
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0.

c. Kennebunk Pond Beach Committee – Dave Alves Liaison Report/update
David Alves – States the committee is working on the final meeting with the architect, then they will
be finalizing the cost proposal.

d. Treasurer – Expense Summary Report 1-12-23 – No discussion.
e. CEO – Policy Update recommendation. See email.

Brenda Charland – Suggested the Board give a directive that Town buildings and buildings on Town
Property be inspected periodically by the Fire chief, the CEO and Electrical Inspector. All info would
be kept in the CEO office for record keeping.
John Tibbets – Asks if there is a recommended interval of time between inspections.
Brenda Charland – States she has looked into other neighboring Town’s and found they typically do
an inspection anywhere between 3 and 5 years. It would be up to the board how often they would
want an inspection to be done.
John Tibbets – makes a motion on a directive to conduct inspections on Town properties and
buildings every three years.
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion.
David Alves – Recommends adding language to the motion that it does not have to wait three
years for inspection and can be done sooner if the CEO, Electrical Inspector and/or Fire chief deem
necessary.
Brenda Charland – Asks the board if they would want to review the reports when inspections are
completed. The board agrees they would like to review the reports.
Motion passes: 5-0-0

f. Tax Clerk – December Report – Report reviewed in meeting.
g. Other  - Town Hall Expansion Committee

Brad Nikel – States Mark Swett has some RFPs out for a steel building company to check on a rough
idea of what a steel building would cost.
David Alves – States he is working on getting a surveyor.

ITEM #7 NEW BUSINESS 
a. Discuss scheduling Budget Workshops

A workshop has been scheduled for Thursday January 26th, 2023 at 6:00pm.
b. ARPA Memorandum

Thomas Hatch – States the board would have to put this out to bid probably soon to keep things
moving forward.
Michelle Feliccitti – State the ARPA committee will have one more meeting to finalize their
recommendations. They were looking into including in their recommendations Bunganut Park and
Kennebunk Pond Beach.

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday January 17, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 3 of 5 

c. Mail Subscription request, see email
Discussion with the board on what the policy entails. The board agrees not to respond to the
request.

d. Approval for committee access to building
Discussion regarding committees being able to access the building for committee meetings.
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to issue a key and code to the building for Brad Nikel
John Tibbets – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

e. Review Mowing Contract with KCB
Lindsay Gagne – States the contract remains the same from the draft version, other than adding the
contractors bid pricing in there. The board can review and sign.

f. Review Plowing contract with Dayton Snow Fighters
Lindsay Gagne – States the contractor requested removing the language in the contract regarding a
performance bond. Rather than to hold 10% of his payments each month he requested to have no
holding because he has been doing work for the Town for 18-years. However, he is not opposed to
leaving the language as it is.
Jessica Picard – makes a motion to remove the language on holding 10% in lieu of a performance
bond.
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion.
David Alves – States he’s uncertain this would be the best route to take.
Jessica Picard – Verifies for the first year, each month the 10% holding would be $4,500.00, with
the final payment at the end of the year being $45,000.00. She states her opinion is there is other
language in the contract to cover such as breach of contract, termination clauses, performance,
duties, and given the work this contractor has done for the Town.
David Alves – States the contractor should be able to handle a hold of that amount.
Motion fails: 2-3-0 (Jessica Picard, John Tibbets in favor of; Ralph Blackington, David Alves,
Thomas Hatch Opposed).
The board agrees to move forward with the contract as originally drafted with the 10% holding
included.

g. Annual Town Report – Dedicating to group/individual
Thomas Hatch – Recommends considering a group within the Town, such as, Boy scouts, Historical
Society, Fire Department, etc.
John Tibbetts – Explains there is a ceremony involved in Alfred also.
Michelle Feliccitti – Suggests a mailchimp or survey of some sort to receive input.

h. Newsletter discussion
Jessica Picard – States she is looking for board support for working with Lindsay on putting together
a newsletter.
John Tibbets makes a motion. Thomas Hatch Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

i. RSU #57 Board member opening, discuss appointing a new member
Ralph Blackington – Explains a board member has resigned. There were two candidates that
received substantial votes from the last election, the board could consider contacting them if they
had an interest and they could fill out a committee application.
Thomas Hatch – States the board could put this out to the general public and also contact these two
candidates.

j. Review/Approve PO’s for Cemetery Tree removal services. PO# 1610, 1611, 1614, & 1607
Michelle Feliccitti – States the PO’s don’t itemize the work being done and are all for the same
amount.
Jessica Picard – Asks if these have been put out to bid.

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday January 17, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 4 of 5 

Lindsay Gagne – States the cemetery committee gave a presentation at a past board meeting and at 
that time talked about getting quotes but did not provide any quotes to the board.   
Thomas Hatch – States we should reach out to the cemetery committee and clarify some questions.  
Jessica Picard – States the board would want to know the details; where are they cutting, what are 
they leaving behind; how did they got their pricing. 
Thomas Hatch – Makes a motion to approve the PO’s pending answering the stated questions. 
John Tibbets – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0 

k. Appointment/Oath – Michelle Feliccitti Ballot clerk for Special Town Meeting 1/18/23
Jessica Picard - makes a motion to appoint Michelle Feliccitti as Ballot Clerk for Special Town
Meeting on January 18th, 2023.
John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0

OTHER 
David Alves – States regarding the tax acquired land study, he has requested information on the timber harvesting and 
the stumpage pricing the Town has received. It dates back to 2016 but it doesn’t appear it has gone out to an RFP for 
stumpage prices.  
David Alves – Makes a motion to contact the logging company and cancel any agreement that may have been verbal 
or in writing and advertise a proper RFP for timber harvesting on parcels owned by the Town of Lyman.  
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion. 
John Tibbetts – States it was important to have a company that conducted a clean job. At Bunganut they had done a 
good job clearing areas that were difficult to clear. Other loggers the Town has worked with have left a mess behind. 
He’s had a forester look over the prices they received and were given feedback that the prices were better than we 
had thought. They had spoken to landowners and walked some of their sights and previous work. This was not a 
service we were paying for and did not need to go out to bid.  
David Alves – States he agrees the board has a due diligence to ensure the job is cleaned up. He States this is a hired 
service that gets paid through the process of cutting the Town’s timber.  
Motion passes: 4-1-0 (Ralph Blackington, Jessica Picard, Thomas Hatch, David Alves in favor; John Tibbets Opposed). 
Maurice St. Claire – States they had chosen the vendor because of the work he did. He has done excellent work. The 
Town is not paying for timber harvesting, and this does not need to go out to bid.  
John Tibbets – States there was a forestry plan done about ten-years ago that was worked off of. They had walked the 
site and determined this was the better vendor.  

EXECUTIVE SESSION 
1.M.R.S.A §405 (A) Personnel Matters
Thomas Hatch – Makes a motion to go into executive session per M.R.S.A §405 (A) Personnel Matters
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to come out of executive session.
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 5-0-0
Thomas Hatch – Makes a motion to move forward with the agreed salary increase for the Assessor for the January
12th fiscal year budgeted amount.
Jessica Picard – Seconds the motion.
Motion passes: 5-0-0

ADJOURN 
Jessica Picard – Makes a motion to adjourn. 
Thomas Hatch – Seconds the motion, Motion passes: 5-0-0 

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Monday January 17, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 5 of 5 

__________________________________________ 
Ralph “Ralph” Blackington (Chair) 

__________________________________________ 
Thomas Hatch (Vice Chair) 

_____________________________________________ 

David Alves 

_____________________________________________ 

Jessica Picard 

_____________________________________________ 

John Tibbetts

I, Lindsay Gagne, Clerk to the Select Board of the Town of Lyman, Maine, do hereby certify that the foregoing document consisting 
of 5 pages are the original minutes of the Board of Selectmen Regular Meeting dated January 17th, 2023 

_____________________________________ 

Lindsay Gagne

DRAFT



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Special Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday January 18, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 1 of 3 

Selectboard members present: Ralph “Rusty” Blackington (Chair), Thomas Hatch (Vice Chair) 
Jessica Picard, John Tibbetts 
Selectboard members absent: David Alves 

ITEM #1 
a. Open RFP’s for Classification & Compensation Job Study

Opened sealed bids for Classification & Compensation Study 2023. Bids received are as follows:
1. CBIZ Compensation Consulting

Submitted 1/18/2023

Organization-Wide Compensation Study   $25,000.00 

(Includes custom peer survey & employee presentations) 

Update Job Descriptions  $6,000.00 

Town Manager Recommendations $2,500.00 

Total Fees $33,500.00 

2. REDW, LLC

Submitted 1/17/2023

Assessment & Classification plan  $8,250.00 

Benefits Review & Recommendations $2,750.00 

Job Analysis & Job Description Update 

- Job Analysis (22 positions) $3,300.00 

- Updated Job Descriptions (includes TM & Assistant TM) $8,800.00 

- Contract review for TM $2,625.00 

Job Evaluation & Compensation Study  $3,300.00 

Conclusion of Study, Implementation & Training $5,500.00 

Compease Licensing, Training & Implementation $600.00 

- (90% discount for first year, cost includes software implementation) ($540.00) 

- 1 day compease training $2,000.00 

Parity Analysis & Financial Plan $1,000.00 

Total Fees $40,335.00 

3. Paypoint HR

Submitted 12/27/2022

Classification & Compensation Study, All positions $9,500.00 

Benefits Analysis  $2,500.00 

Job Description Review, Updates all positions $3,000.00 

ITEM#3: (b.) Minutes 1/18/2023



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Special Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday January 18, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 2 of 3 

Policy Review & Updates Including FLSA & Overtime $2,000.00 

Draft of Employment Contract for Town Manager $1,250.00 

Total Fees $18,250.00 

4. Municipal Resources, Inc (MRI)

Submitted 1/17/2023

MRI Proposes to assist with the following: 

o Development of salary & Benefits analysis for all positions, including a comparison analysis

o Recommendations of a valid process, methodology, & policy to determine pay levels for positions.

o Review/ Update existing job descriptions

o Updated classification and compensation plan

o Labor market compensation analysis and comparisons

o Classification forms and documents

o Methodology and implementation guidelines

o Development of Personnel Policy

o Recommendation on organizational structure of positions

o Implementation of costs

o Final Report and Findings.

(Timeline: Salary, benefits & Classification plan would be completed by April 1, 2023 to assist the Town with compiling data 

in a timely manner for Annual Town Meeting. Remainder of components of the study would be completed by June 1, 2023 

or sooner.) 

Total Fees $13,000.00 

5. JER HR Group, LLC

Submitted 1/17/2023

Project Initiation Phase $3,000.00 

- Meetings

- Obtain Background information.

- Review / Update current compensation policies

& Practices

Classification Phase $2,500.00 

- Entry of Job Descriptions in software

- Assign Scoring of 15 factors

- Conduct FLSA & EEO audit jobs.

- Assign Job Values

- Presentation to key stakeholders

Compensation Phase $5,500.00 



Town of Lyman 

Select Board Special Meeting Minutes 

Wednesday January 18, 2023 – Lyman Town Hall 

Page 3 of 3 

- Compare Town jobs and pay to external jobs.

(20 positions)

- Review Internal and Pay equity.

- Recommend pay increase plan.

Benefits survey phase $3,000.00 

- Preparations of the survey form, and survey data

Required Significant Deliverables $1,500.00 

- Create initial drafts/ reports and submit for review

- Make changes & finalize reports.

- Presentation to key stakeholders

- Train HR staff on maintenance of plan/software

Travel $4,000.00 

- Travel for two on-site visits

Total Fees $19,500.00 

Jessica Picard - Makes a motion the board proceeds with the consideration of RFPs Municipal Resources Inc, 
JER HR Group and Paypoint HR and check references before making a final decision.  
John Tibbets – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0 

ADJOURN 

Thomas Hatch – Makes a motion to adjourn. 
John Tibbetts – Seconds the motion. Motion passes: 4-0-0 

__________________________________________ 
Ralph “Ralph” Blackington (Chair) 

__________________________________________ 
Thomas Hatch (Vice Chair) 

_____________________________________________ 

David Alves 

_____________________________________________ 

Jessica Picard 

_____________________________________________ 

John Tibbetts

I, Lindsay Gagne, Clerk to the Select Board of the Town of Lyman, Maine, do hereby certify that the foregoing document consisting 
of 3 pages are the original minutes of the Board of Selectmen Regular Meeting dated January 18th, 2023 

_____________________________________ 

Lindsay Gagne



ITEM#4: (a.) Payroll Warrant #33





ITEM#4: (b.) Payroll Warrant #34





ITEM#4: (c.) AP Warrant #35















2/2/2023

I've contacted several reference contacts from all three vendors. I received the following responses

Municipal Resources Inc, MRI
o Auburn, ME
o Old Orchard Beach, ME
o Saco, ME
o Waterville, ME

Pay Point HR
o South Portland, ME
o Dover, NH

JER HR Group
o None received as of 2/2/2023

Lindsay Gagne
Select Board Clerk

ITEM#5: (a.) RFP Follow up from 1/18/2023 special board meeting



From: Chris Mumau
To: Selectmen Board Clerk
Cc: Rita Beaudry
Subject: MRI Services
Date: Tuesday, January 24, 2023 4:17:31 PM

Hi Lyndsay, 

    We did utilize MRI's services for our most recent pay study in 2018.  They provided us a
good report based upon the municipalities we had chosen for our sample.  Additionally, they
reviewed and created our evaluation and a Supervisor Guide to Evaluations,  for us to use.  

     I  thought they did a fair job.  I think, at the time we secured them, they were over
committed and it was in the summer time, so it seemed to take longer.   The costs were in the
middle of what others had bid.  If I were to use them again, I would make sure to ask what
other commitments they had and what kind of time frame they needed to finish the survey.  

At the end of the day, they did a great presentation to the Council and provided a well put
together binder with all the results.    I would definitely look at all the samples and take the
time to listen to each presentation, regardless of the costs, so you have a good understanding
of what you are looking for as well.  I have seen other municipalities presentations after ours
was done, and wished I had included things into the proposal based on their results.

Please consider reaching out to the Maine Local Govt Human Resources group, to get
responses from other municipalities who have done salary surveys.  Their email is:

MLGHRA@LIST.MLGHRA.ORG 

Please feel free to email with any more information you may need. 

Chris

Christine M. Mumau
Director of Human Resources
City of Auburn, ME
cmumau@auburnmaine.gov
207-333-6601 x 1416

mailto:cmumau@auburnmaine.gov
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
mailto:rbeaudry@auburnmaine.gov
tel:207-333-6601


From: France Beaulieu
To: Selectmen Board Clerk
Subject: RE: Municipal Resources Inc refence request
Date: Monday, January 30, 2023 12:08:26 PM
Attachments: image006.png

image011.png
image012.png
image013.png
image014.png

HI Lindsay,

MRI was good to work with and handled pretty much the whole process. They were thorough and had incredible
insight into most of the positions.
The wage scales were good but we are finding that there is some confusion when staff have been reviewing the job
descriptions after a year has passed and where they feel staff should be placed.  We wanted a scale with some
flexibility but we are still faced with the same dilemma regarding where to put a person on the scale, especially in the
harder to fill positions.

All in all, they were easy to work with and gave lots of insight.  This was the first one done in over 15 years, so we
expected some growing pains.
Hope this helps.

Fran

Fran Beaulieu
Director of Human Resources & Communications
Town of Old Orchard Beach
1 Portland Ave
Old Orchard Beach ME 04064
P: (207) 937-5632
F: (207) 937-5732
Email: fbeaulieu@oobmaine.com
Website:  www.oobmaine.com

Stay Connected:

NOTICE: Under Maine's Freedom of Access ("Right to Know") Law, documents - including emails - in the possession of public officials
about Town business are considered public records.  This means if anyone asks to see it, we are required to provide it.  There are very
few exceptions.  We welcome citizen comments and want to hear from our constituents, but please keep in mind that what you write
in an email is not private and will be made available to any interested party.

 

mailto:fbeaulieu@oobmaine.com
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
mailto:fbeaulieu@oobmaine.com
http://www.oobmaine.com/
https://www.oobmaine.com/communications
https://www.facebook.com/TownOOB
https://www.instagram.com/townoob/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCrqYmeu-zI-c7E1RONQXwtA







From: Bryan Kaenrath
To: Selectmen Board Clerk
Subject: RE: Municipal Resources Inc reference request
Date: Monday, January 30, 2023 5:21:33 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
image003.png
image004.png

Hi Lindsay,

We’ve had very good results with MRI and I would recommend them without reservation. I have worked with them
in 2 communities now where I have been TA/CA and the process and results have been excellent in each. Many of
their consultants have strong ties to Maine and understand our towns and cities. We recently had a wage and comp
study/analysis done by Carol Granfield (former Maine County/Town Manager) which went very well. We will likely be
engaging them again this year to provide an update to this study and the feasibility of a merit system. It is a very
experienced group with a wide reach of expertise and resources.  Let me know if you have any other specific
questions.

Thanks,

Bryan

BRYAN T. KAENRATH
City Administrator
City of Saco
300 Main Street | Saco, ME 04072
t 207.282.4191 | sacomaine.org
Follow us: Facebook | Twitter | Instagram

 

mailto:bkaenrath@sacomaine.org
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=http-3A__www.sacomaine.org_&d=DwMFAg&c=lDF7oMaPKXpkYvev9V-fVahWL0QWnGCCAfCDz1Bns_w&r=Xr8EfHZReGOTXcnH306bjOVGufUEQ-s_0UFShRfP9zk&m=2VKvraZPp9BrejsYH-KJu6A5JRo9D_yjP_Mnhj31oEQ&s=tLSvq6ksZpch2BkMhDG-VtvngKM-eINqGcUt-M0wcLY&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.facebook.com_sacomaine&d=DwMFAg&c=lDF7oMaPKXpkYvev9V-fVahWL0QWnGCCAfCDz1Bns_w&r=Xr8EfHZReGOTXcnH306bjOVGufUEQ-s_0UFShRfP9zk&m=2VKvraZPp9BrejsYH-KJu6A5JRo9D_yjP_Mnhj31oEQ&s=J3KlCpQAM0G9L5dYLutLgMm3dQtxTdLs1nDhWR21jSk&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__twitter.com_sacomaine&d=DwMFAg&c=lDF7oMaPKXpkYvev9V-fVahWL0QWnGCCAfCDz1Bns_w&r=Xr8EfHZReGOTXcnH306bjOVGufUEQ-s_0UFShRfP9zk&m=2VKvraZPp9BrejsYH-KJu6A5JRo9D_yjP_Mnhj31oEQ&s=SvERmcB35i4PphK8VTpTNCoBMf6NepVIDzj5m0NBcZc&e=
https://urldefense.proofpoint.com/v2/url?u=https-3A__www.instagram.com_saco.maine&d=DwMFAg&c=lDF7oMaPKXpkYvev9V-fVahWL0QWnGCCAfCDz1Bns_w&r=Xr8EfHZReGOTXcnH306bjOVGufUEQ-s_0UFShRfP9zk&m=2VKvraZPp9BrejsYH-KJu6A5JRo9D_yjP_Mnhj31oEQ&s=VDoLFp_cf-szLC8ELvHNlUljrvzlIY5l6hchMfuoC-U&e=








From: Weaver,Stephanie
To: Selectmen Board Clerk
Subject: City of South Portland
Date: Tuesday, January 24, 2023 4:36:02 PM

Scott Morelli asked me to follow up on your request for information regarding the City’s work with
Paypoint HR.  Paypoint provided a review of all Job Descriptions, and then developed a new
grade/classification system and associated pay scale for the City’s non-union positions.  They met all
deadlines and were responsive, including to our changes to the final plan (2-3 rounds) to get the
plan where we wanted it to be, and have provided ongoing answers to questions past our project
completion date.  The process was affordable.  In terms of outcomes, the plan was good but the
work on Job Descriptions was not strong, plus the spreadsheet for calculating grade placement of
new positions or if positions need to be reclassed can be a bit quirky but overall works pretty well.  I
also think the market changes that happened soon after implementation, even though we tried to
anticipate that with a COLA at implementation, impacted our scales (somewhat out of market
almost immediately) but that was not their fault.

Thanks,
Stephanie Weaver
Director of Human Resources
City of South Portland
25 Cottage Rd
South Portland, ME
207-767-7667 (office)
sweaver@southportland.org

NOTICE: Under Maine’s Freedom of Access (“Right-to-Know”) law, documents - including
e-mail - in the possession of public officials about City business are classified as public
records. This means if anyone asks to see it, we are required to provide it. There are very few
exceptions. We welcome citizen comments and want to hear from our residents, but please
keep in mind that what you write in an e-mail is not private and could show up in the local
newspaper.

mailto:sweaver@southportland.org
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov


From: Daudelin, Susan
To: Selectmen Board Clerk
Subject: RE: Paypoint HR reference request
Date: Wednesday, January 25, 2023 9:14:52 AM
Attachments: image005.png

image006.png
image007.png
image008.png

Good Morning, Lindsay:

The City of Dover contracted with Paypoint HR in the Fall of 2019.  We hired them to conduct a comprehensive total
compensation survey and to review our current classification plan and provide recommendations.  They were very
thorough.  The process started with them working with our committee to determine the comparable communities
for the survey.  They worked directly with my position to work out scheduling for completion of questionnaires by
employees and focus group meetings.  The final report was very comprehensive.  We ultimately ended up using their
final report and recommendations during our negotiation sessions with our collective bargaining units to transition
to the classification and pay plan they recommended.  Additionally, they provided a presentation to our City Council
and they voted to accept the report with the intention of it being used for negotiations.

I hope you find this helpful.  If you have any questions feel free to phone, 603-516-6869, or email
s.daudelin@dover.nh.gov.

Very Best,
Sue

Susan Daudelin, SHRM-SCP, LDSS, IPMA-SCP
Director of Human Resources
City of Dover, NH
288 Central Avenue
Dover NH  03820
p: 603.516.6869    f: 603.516.6869
e: s.daudelin@dover.nh.gov
Dover:  First in New Hampshire, First with you!

mailto:S.Daudelin@dover.nh.gov
mailto:selectboard@lyman-me.gov
mailto:s.daudelin@dover.nh.gov
mailto:s.daudelin@dover.nh.gov






1 

 CABLE TV FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 

Between the Town of Lyman, Maine and  

 Spectrum Northeast, LLC By Charter Communications, Inc. Its 

Manager 

Table of Contents 
1. Statement of Agreement ........................................................................................................ 3 

2. Title ........................................................................................................................................ 3 

3. Parties ..................................................................................................................................... 3 

4. Notices (Communications) .................................................................................................... 4 

5. Grant of Authority.................................................................................................................. 4 

6. Term ....................................................................................................................................... 5 

7. Governing Law ...................................................................................................................... 5 

8. Effect of Acceptance ............................................................................................................ 65 

9. Definitions.............................................................................................................................. 6 

10. Construction and Maintenance ............................................................................................ 12 

11. Operations ............................................................................................................................ 16 

12. Insurance .............................................................................................................................. 17 

13. Performance Bond ............................................................................................................... 19 

14. Records and Reports ........................................................................................................ 2120 

15. Franchise Fee ................................................................................................................... 2322 

16. Public, Educational and Governmental Access (PEG) .................................................... 2423 

17. Build-out .......................................................................................................................... 2726 

18. Cable Service to Municipal Buildings ............................................................................. 2827 

19. Rates & Services .............................................................................................................. 2827 

20. Rights of Individuals ........................................................................................................ 2928 

21. Unauthorized Connections/Continuity of Service ............................................................ 3130 

22. Subscriber Complaints ..................................................................................................... 3130 

23. Penalties .............................................................................................................................. 3231 

24. Transfers .......................................................................................................................... 3432 

25. Successors/Assigns .......................................................................................................... 3735 

26. Renewal............................................................................................................................ 3736 

27. Revocation and Termination ............................................................................................ 3736 

28. Abandonment ................................................................................................................... 3937 

Formatted: Not Highlight

ITEM#5: (b.) Franchise Agreement, update from Shelly



2 

29. Expiration of Agreement.................................................................................................. 3938 

30. Changes in Law................................................................................................................ 3938 

31. Amendments .................................................................................................................... 4038 

33. Miscellaneous .................................................................................................................. 4038 



3 

 

Administrative Issues 
 

1. Statement of Agreement 

 

This Franchise Agreement (the “Franchise”) is made and entered as of __________________, 

2022 between the Town of Lyman, Maine (the “Town” or “Local Franchise Authority”) and 

Spectrum Northeast, LLC LKA Charter Communications Time Warner Cable Northeast LLC 

(hereinafter “Company” or “Time Warner Cable”) a Delaware corporation organized and existing 

in good standing under the laws of the State of Maine. 

 

2. Title 

 

This Franchise Agreement shall be known and cited as the “Lyman, ME Cable Television 

Franchise”.  Within this document it shall also be referred to as “this Franchise” or “the Franchise”. 

 

3. Parties  

 

A. Town 

 

1. Name:  Town of Lyman 

2. Contact:  Board of Selectmen 

3. Mailing Address:  11 So. Waterboro St., Lyman, ME  04002 

4. Telephone  (207) 499-7562 

 

B. Company 

 

1. Name:  Spectrum Northeast, LLC  

2. L/K/ABy:  Charter Communications, Inc. Its Manager 

3. Contact:  Local Franchising 

4. Mailing Address:  400 Old County Road 

Rockland, ME  04841 

5. Telephone:  800-833-2253 

 

C. Company Local Business Office 

 

As required by 30-A M.R.S.A. §3010 (1)(B) and 47 CFR §76.309(c)(1)(v), Company shall 

maintain a conveniently located business office that must be open during usual business hours and 

have a listed toll-free telephone number capable of receiving complaints, requests for adjustments 

and service calls.   

 

1. Business Office Address:  118 Johnson Road, Portland, ME 04102 

2. Toll-free Customer Service Number:   1-800-233-2253 

 



4 

 

D. Addresses 

 

Such addresses may be changed by either party upon 30-days prior written notice to the other 

party. 

 

4. Notices (Communications) 

 

All notices required to be provided in this Agreement shall be provided in writing via e-mail, 

overnight or certified mail to: 

 

1. Company: to the Company contact at the mailing address in Section 3 

2. Town: to the Town contact at mailing address in Section 3 

 

5. Grant of Authority 

 

Pursuant to the authority in 30-A M.R.S.A. §3008 and 3010 and applicable federal law, and subject 

to the terms and conditions set forth herein, the Town of Lyman as the Local Franchise Authority, 

hereby grants a non-exclusive, revocable cable television franchise to the Company Time Warner 

Cable authorizing and permitting the Company to own, construct, upgrade, install, operate and 

maintain a Cable Television System within the Town of Lyman. 

 

A. Franchise Area 

 

Company is hereby granted by the Town, where it has the right to do so, the right and privilege to 

own, construct, reconstruct, erect, operate and maintain, in the Town of Lyman (herein called the 

“Franchise area” or “Town”), in, upon, along, across, above, over and under the Rights of Way  

now laid out or dedicated, and all extensions thereof and additions thereto, poles, wires, cables, 

antennae, optical fibers, underground conduits, manholes and other television and radio conductors 

and fixtures used for the maintenance and operation of physical facilities located in the Rights of 

Way, including the  Cable System.  In the event of annexation by the Town, any new territory shall 

become part of the area covered upon sixty (60) days advance written notice by the Town to the 

Company. Nothing in this Franchise shall be construed to prohibit the Company from offering any 

service over its Cable System that is not prohibited by federal or State law. 

 

B. Limited Grant 

 

This Franchise is intended to convey rights and interests in accordance with applicable law as to 

those Rights-of-Way in which the Town has an actual interest. It is not a warranty of title or interest 

in any Right-of-Way; it does not provide Company any interest in any particular location within 

the Right-of-Way; and it does not confer rights other than as expressly provided in the grant.  The 

Town reserves any powers, rights, or privileges it now has or may later acquire in the future to use, 

perform work on, or to regulate the use of, and to control the Right-of-Way in a non-discriminatory 

manner as to all users of the rights of way, including without limitation the right to perform work 

on its roadways, Right-of-Way or appurtenant drainage facilities, including but not limited to, 

constructing, altering, removing, paving, widening, grading, or excavating. 

 



5 

C. Non-Exclusivity

Company’s rights and privileges are non-exclusive and the Town expressly reserves the right to 

grant other such franchise agreements in the Town provided, however, that any such additional 

franchise shall not be on terms and conditions that are materially more favorable or less 

burdensome than those provided for herein. If any other provider of cable services or video services 

(without regard to the technology used to deliver such services) is lawfully authorized by the Town 

or by any other State or federal governmental entity to provide such services using facilities located 

wholly or partly in the public rights-of-way of the Town, the Town shall ensure that the terms 

applicable to such other provider are no more favorable or less burdensome than those applicable 

to Company.  If the authorization applicable to such other provider contains franchise fee, PEG, 

free service, right-of-way, or other terms imposing monetary or regulatory burdens that are less 

costly or less burdensome than the corresponding obligations imposed upon Company, Town shall, 

within thirty (30) days of a written request from Company, modify this Franchise to ensure that 

the corresponding obligations applicable to Company are no more costly or burdensome than those 

imposed on the new competing provider. Nothing in this Section shall be deemed a waiver of any 

remedies available to Company under federal, state or municipal law, including but not limited to 

Section 625 of the Cable Act, 47 U.S.C. § 545. Notwithstanding the preceding,  any additional non 
cable TV services subsequently offered by Company, and that are allowed under state and federal law, 

may not be carried over cable lines/Right of Way until authorized by the Town. provided, however, that 

any such additional franchise shall not be on terms and conditions that are materially more 

favorable or less burdensome than those provided for herein.  If any provider of cable services or 

video services (without regard to the technology used to deliver such services) is lawfully 

authorized by the Town or by any other State or federal governmental entity to provide such 

services using facilities located wholly or partly in the public rights-of-way of the Town, the Town 

shall ensure that the terms applicable to such other prover are no more favorable or less 

burdensome than those applicable to Company.  Upon the effective date of any such franchise, the 

requirements imposed by the less costly or less burdensome obligations in such competing 

provider’s authorization shall replace the corresponding provisions in Company’s franchise.. 

D. Eminent Domain not Conferred

No privilege or power of eminent domain is bestowed to Company by the Town by this grant of 

this Franchise. 

6. Term

This Franchise shall commence on __________________,20232 (the “Effective Date”), and shall 

expire ten (10) years thereafter, on _________________20323, unless renewed, revoked or 

terminated sooner as herein provided. 

7. Governing Law

This Franchise Agreement shall be governed by and be subject to federal law, all applicable FCC 

rules and regulations and the laws and rules of the State of Maine. Company shall be subject to the 

jurisdiction of the courts of the State of Maine in any suit arising out of this Franchise Agreement 

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Commented [A1]: Town requires this addition. 

Formatted: Underline



6 

except that this provision shall not limit Company’s right to initiate a proceeding or to remove a 

proceeding to the United States District Court for the District of Maine. 

8. Effect of Acceptance

By accepting the Franchise, Company and the Town: (1) acknowledge and accept each party’s 

legal right to execute and enforce the Franchise; and (2) accept and agree to comply with the 

provisions of this Agreement and generally-applicable, non-discriminatory municipal ordinances 

. and (3) neither party will raise any procedural claims attempting to invalidate the agreement. 

; and (3) neither party will raise any procedural claims attempting to invalidate the agreement. 

9. Definitions

For the purpose of this Franchise Agreement, the following words, terms, phrases, and their 

derivations shall have the meanings given herein, unless the context clearly requires a different 

meaning.  When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the present tense included the 

future tense, words in the plural number include the singular number, and words in the singular 

number include the plural number.  The word “shall” is always mandatory and not merely 

directory, except where noted.  Where the following definitions differ from or are in conflict with 

definitions in applicable Federal law, it is the express intent that the definition in applicable Federal 

or State law shall take precedence. 

1. Affiliate or Affiliated Person: An entity which owns or controls, is owned or

controlled by, or is under common ownership with a Cable Operator.

2. Area Outage: An area outage occurs when cable or equipment is damaged, fails,

or otherwise malfunctions (collectively called “malfunctions”), and ten or more

Subscribers receiving services from that section of cable or that equipment receive

unusable or no service as a result of that malfunction.

3. Basic Cable Service: The lowest service tier transmitted to all Subscribers, which

includes, at a minimum, (a) the transmission of local all signals of domestic

television broadcast stations entitled to "must carry" status under FCC rules, and

(b) any public educational and governmental programming required by this

Franchise Agreement to be carried on the basic tier if required by applicable law.

4. Broadcast: Over-the-air transmission by a radio or television station.

5. Cable Act: Cable Communications Policy Act of 1984 (the “1984 Cable Act”),

Public Law No. 98-549, 98 Stat. 2779 (1984), as amended by the Cable Television

Consumer Protection and Competition Act of 1992 (the “1992 Cable Act”), Public

Law No. 102-385, 106 Stat. 1460 (1992) and the Telecommunications Act of 1996,



7 

Public Law No. 104-104, 110 Stat. 56 (1996), as the same may be amended from 

time to time . 

6. Cablecast: Programming (exclusive of Broadcast signals) carried on the Cable

System.

7. Cable Service or Service: The one-way transmission to Subscribers of video

programming or other programming service, together with Subscriber interaction,

if any, which is required for the selection or use of such video programming or

other programming service.

8. Cable System: Shall be defined in accordance with Section 602 of the Cable Act.

A facility consisting of a set of closed transmission paths and associated signal 

generation, reception and control equipment designed to provide Cable Service 

(including video programming) to multiple Subscribers within a head-end service 

area. This shall means a the facility serving the Town owned, constructed, installed, 

operated and maintained by Company, consisting of a set of closed transmission 

paths and associated signal generation, reception, and control equipment that is 

designated to provide cable service which includes video programming and which 

is provided to multiple subscribers within a community, but such term does not 

include (a) a facility that serves only to retransmit the television signals of one or 

more television broadcast stations; (b) a facility that serves subscribers without 

using any public right-of-way; (c) a facility of a common carrier which is subject, 

in whole or in part, to the provisions of Title II of the Communicationsable Act, 

except that such facility shall be considered a cable system (other than for purposes 

of section 621(c) of the Cable Act) to the extent such facility is used in the 

transmission of video programming directly to subscribers unless the extent of such 

use is solely to provide interactive on-demand services; or (d) an open video system 

that complies with section 653 of the Cable Act this title, or (e) any facilities of any 

electric utility used solely for operating its electric utility systems. 

9. Channel or Video Channel: A portion of the electromagnetic frequency spectrum

which is used in a Cable System and which is capable of delivering a television

channel.

10. Company: Time Warner Cable Spectrum Northeast, LLC, and any lawful 

successor(s) to the interest of such Person or Persons. 

11. Contractor or Subcontractor or Agent: Any person or entity who or which

directly or indirectly works for or is under the direction of “The Company” for the

purpose of installation or repair of any portion of the Company’s Cable system in

the Town.

12. Converter: A special tuner or device attached to the Subscriber’s television set that

expands reception capacity and/or unscrambles coded signals distributed over the

Cable System.



8 

13. Designated Access Provider: The entity or entities which may be designated from

time to time by the Town to provide PEG access to the residents of the Town of

Lyman.

14. Downstream Channel: A channel over which Signals travel from the Cable

System Head end to an authorized recipient of programming.

15. Downstream Transmission: Signals traveling from the head-end to the

Subscriber’s location.

16. Drop or Cable Drop: The interconnection between each home or building and the

feeder cable of the Cable System.

17. FCC: The Federal Communications Commission or any successor agency.

18. Feeder Cable: The cable, connected to trunk cable, from which cable television

signal service is distributed to multiple Subscribers, as distinguished from trunk

cable (which distributes cable television service throughout the Franchise area) and

drop cable.

19. Franchise Agreement: The non-exclusive Cable Television License to be granted

to Company by this instrument to include the right, privilege and franchise to

construct, operate and maintain a Cable System, and appurtenances or parts thereof,

in the Streets, roads, alleys, and other Public Ways of the Town.

20. Gross Annual Revenue: Revenue of any form or kind received by the Company

from the carriage of  Cable Service including, without limitation: the distribution

of any Cable Service over the System; Basic Service monthly fees; all other Cable

Service fees; fees paid for pay and/or pay-per-view services, installation,

reconnection, downgrade, upgrade and any other similar fees; fees paid for channels

designated for commercial use; converter, remote control and other equipment

rentals, and/or leases and/or sales; all home shopping service(s) revenues; and

advertising revenues.  Gross Annual Revenue shall not include any taxes or fees

other than franchise fees on services furnished by Company imposed directly on

any Subscriber or user by any governmental unit and collected by Company for

such governmental unit.  In the event that an Affiliate is responsible for advertising

on the Cable System in the Town, advertising revenues shall be deemed to be the

pro-rata portion of advertising revenues excluding commissions and/or applicable

agency fees, paid to the Company by an Affiliate for said Affiliate’s use of the

Cable System for the carriage of advertising.  It is the intention of the parties here

to that Gross Annual Revenues shall only include such revenue  of Affiliates and/or

Persons relating to the provision of Cable Service  over the Cable System and not

the gross revenues of any such Affiliate(s) and/or Person(s) itself, where unrelated

to Cable services.  Gross Annual Revenue shall be computed in accordance with

Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.



9 

21. Head-end: A company owned or leased facility through which Broadcast and

cablecast signals are electronically acquired, translated, or modified for distribution

over the Cable System.

22. Interactive Service: Any service that offers to Subscribers the capability of both

transmitting and receiving Signals of any kind.

23. Institutional Network or I-Net: A communication network which is available

only to municipal and educational institutions for non-commercial purposes.

24. Leased Channel or Leased Access: A video channel which the Licensee shall

make available pursuant to Section 612 of the Cable Act.

25. Town: The Town of Lyman, Maine, or its successor.

26. Origination Point: A connection to the cable system which is provided to allow

for live or recorded programming to be transmitted from that location Upstream to

the Head-end and from there Downstream to the Subscribers over one or more

access channels, also referred to in this Agreement as a return feed.

27. Other Programming Service: Information that Company may make available to

all Subscribers generally.

28. Outlet: An interior receptacle, generally mounted in a wall, that connects a

subscriber’s or user’s television set to the Cable System.

29. Parent: When used in reference to Company, any Person holding direct or indirect

ownership or control of thirty percent (30%) or more of the rights of control of

Company; and any Person holding such ownership or control of a Parent to

Company.

30. Pay Cable or Premium Service: Optional programming delivered for a fee or

charge to Subscribers on a per-channel basis, or as a package of services.

31. Pay-Per-View: Programming delivered for a fee or charge to Subscribers on a per-

program or time basis.

32. PEG Facility Transmission Equipment: Equipment which is owned and

maintained by the Company and is associated with the interconnection of PEG

transmission facilities between a PEG facility and the Company’s head end within

the Company’s cable system as well as the formatting of PEG programming for

transmission to the subscriber.

33. PEG Programming: Public, Educational, and Governmental programming that is

of local interest and non-commercial.



10 

34. Person: Any corporation, partnership, limited partnership, association, trust,

organization, other business entity, individual, or group of individuals acting in

concert.

35. Programming or Video Programming: Programming provided by, or generally

considered comparable to programming provided by, a television broadcast station.

36. Public Building: All state accredited public schools, police and fire stations, public

libraries, Town Hall, and other public buildings owned or leased by the Town, but

shall not include buildings owned by the Town but leased to third parties or

buildings such as storage facilities at which government employees are not

regularly stationed.

37. Public Way, Streets or Rights-of-Way: The surface of, and the space above and

below, any public Street, highway, bridge, land path, alley, court, boulevard,

sidewalk, parkway, way, lane, Public Way, drive, circle, or other public right-of-

way, including, but not limited to, public utility easements, dedicated utility strips,

or rights-of-way dedicated for compatible uses and any temporary or permanent

fixtures or improvements located thereon now or hereafter held by the Town, in the

Town which shall entitle the Company to the use thereof for the purpose of

installing, operating, repairing, and maintaining the Cable System.  “Street” or

“Public Way” shall also mean any easement now or hereafter held by the Town

within the Town for the purpose of public travel, or for utility or public service use

dedicated for public travel, or for utility or public service use dedicated for

compatible uses, and shall include other easements or rights-of-way as shall within

their proper use and meaning entitle the Company to the use thereof for the

purposes of installing or transmitting the Company’s Cable Service or other service

over poles, wires, cables, conductors, ducts, conduits, vaults, manholes, amplifiers,

appliances, attachments, and other property as may be ordinarily necessary and

pertinent to the Cable System.  Reference herein to “Public Way” or “Street” shall

not be construed to be a representation or guarantee by the Town that its property

rights are sufficient to permit its use for any purpose, or that the Town shall gain or

be permitted to exercise any rights to use property in the Town greater than those

already possessed by the Town.

38. Signal: Any transmission of electromagnetic or optical energy which carries Video

Programming from one location to another.

39. State: The State of Maine.

40. Subscriber: Any person, firm, corporation, or other entity who or which elects to

subscribe to for any purpose, a Cable Service provided by the Company by means

of, or in connection with, the Cable Television System.



11 

41. Subscriber Network: The 750 MHz bi-directional-capable network to be owned

and operated by the Company, over which Cable Service(s) can be transmitted to

Subscribers.

42. Town: The Town of Lyman, Maine or its successor(s).

43. Transfer: The disposal by the Company directly or indirectly, by gift, assignment,

sale, merger, consolidation or otherwise, of the ownership or control of the System

or of the Franchise Agreement to a Person, or a group of Persons acting in concert.

44. Two-way Capability: The ability to transmit Signals upstream and downstream on

the Cable System.

45. Upstream Channel: A channel over which Signals travel from an origination point

to a system distribution point.

46. Upstream Transmission: Signals traveling from origination points on the Cable

System to a cable distribution point.



12 

10. Construction and Maintenance

A. General Provisions

1. Quality

In the construction, reconstruction, maintenance and repair of the Cable

System, Company shall ensure the Cable System meets the rules and

regulations of the Federal Communications Commission.

2. Compliance with Laws and Regulations

All work, including all working conditions and facilities, associated with

the construction, operation, maintenance, repair and removal of the Cable

System shall comply with:

a. All applicable Federal Laws, Rules and Regulations;

b. All applicable State Laws, Rules, Regulations and Codes, including

generally applicable building and electrical codes; and,

c. All generally applicable ordinances, including zoning ordinances, of

the Town.

Company shall obtain all generally applicable permits before commencing 

any construction, reconstruction, repair, maintenance, or other work or 

property use in the public rights of way.  Permits for emergency work shall 

be obtained as soon as possible, but in the event of extreme adverse weather 

or other emergency condition, Company shall submit a permit as soon as 

reasonably practicable.no event later than one business day after the work 

is begun.  The grant of permits by the Town shall be timely and shall not be 

unreasonably withheld. 

3. Public Ways Hazards

Any openings or obstructions in Streets or other municipal or public

property made by Company shall be guarded and protected at all times by

the placement of adequate barriers, fences, boardings, or other protective

devices at the sole expense of Company.  During the periods of dusk and

darkness, the protective devices shall be clearly designated by warning

lights.

4. Tree Trimming

Company shall have the authority to trim any trees upon and overhanging

the Town’s Streets or Public Ways to the minimum extent necessary to



13 

prevent the branches of such trees from coming in contact with the wires 

and cables of Company; provided that, except for incidental trimming done 

by Company employees in the course of performing their other duties, any 

tree trimming within the rights of way of the Town’s Streets and Public 

Ways done by Company shall take place only after providing 48-hour notice 

to the Board of Selectmen’s Clerk.  In performing tree trimming, Company 

shall use its best efforts to avoid any unnecessary damage or injury to trees, 

and shall comply in all respects with any Town ordinances governing tree 

trimming. 

5. Restoration of Damage

Company, at its sole expense, shall restore all damage to property, both 

public and private, caused by the construction, operation, maintenance or 

repair of the Cable System, so as to return the damaged property to a 

condition as good as reasonably possible before the damage was done.  Such 

restoration shall be made as soon as practicable after completion of work 

necessitating the restoration.  Absent force majeure, such restoration shall 

be made insofar as reasonably possible within fifteen business days, 

weather permitting, after Company’s receipt of notification from the owner 

of the property so damaged unless otherwise mutually agreed by Company 

and the property owner; provided, that if any such damage involves curbs, 

sidewalks or driveways, the damage shall be repaired to the satisfaction of 

the Town (curbs and sidewalks) or the owner or tenant in possession of the 

property (driveways) within ten business days. Company shall provide the 

Town with immediate notice for any damage Company causes to: Streets, 

water-mains, storm or sanitary sewers, or other public facilities.  If 

Company does not make the repairs to such public facilities, Company shall 

be financially liable for the reasonable cost of any repairs.  If Company fails 

to make such restoration on a timely basis, the Town may fix a reasonable 

time for such restoration and repairs and shall notify Company in writing of 

the restoration and repairs required and time fixed for performance hereof. 

Upon failure of Company to comply within the specified time period, the 

Town may cause proper restoration and repairs to be made and the 

reasonable expense of such work shall be paid by Company upon demand 

by the Town. 

6. Contractors, Subcontractors and Agents

All contractors, subcontractors and agents of Company must be properly 

licensed under all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations 

and carry proper identification.   

7. Emergency Power



14 

 

The Cable System shall incorporate equipment capable of providing 

standby powering of the Headend and all Subheadends for a minimum of 

four hours.  

B. Cable System Location 

 

1. Map of Physical Facilities 

 

With reasonable advanced notice to Company, the Town shall have the 

right to inspect street maps which identify the location of all trunk and 

feeder runs including underground.  Said maps will be maintained by 

Company and available for review at Company’s office upon request 

without fee or charge. 

 
2. Location of System 

 

Wherever available to Company on reasonable terms and conditions, the 

distribution system shall use the existing facilities of the public utilities. 

Poles shall not be installed for the sole purpose of supporting a portion of 

the distribution system without written justification and approval of the 

Town, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, pursuant to the 

Town’s generally applicable law, ordinances, rules and regulations. 

 

a. Where the cable or wire facilities of the public utilities are installed 

underground at the time of Cable System construction for new 
developments or housing, Company shall install its cable 

distribution system underground. Vaults and pedestals shall be 

suitably landscaped. 

 
b. In all areas where public utility lines are aerially placed, if 

subsequently during the term of this Franchise Agreement such 

utility lines are relocated underground, Company shall similarly 

relocate its cable distribution system underground at Company’s it’s 

sole expense. However, iIf other owners of utility lines or other users 

are entitled to reimbursement for such relocation costs and the 

source of funding for said reimbursement allows it, Company shall 

have its relocation costs reimbursed as well. 

 

3. No Interference with Rights of Way 

 

Except during temporary construction, installation, or maintenance 

activities, all lines, cables and distribution structures, and equipment, 

including poles and towers, erected, installed or maintained by Company 

within the Town shall be located so as not to obstruct or interfere with the 

proper use of Streets and Public Ways and to cause minimum interference 

with the rights of property owners who abut any of the said Streets and 

Public Ways, and not to interfere with existing public utility installations. 



15 

Company shall not place new poles, towers or other obstructions in Streets 

or Public Ways, or relocate existing poles, towers or other obstructions, 

without first obtaining the Town’s approval, which approval shall not be 

unreasonably withheld. As with all other users of the public rights-of-way, 

Company shall have no vested right in any location, and such construction 

shall be removed by Company at its own cost and expense whenever the 

same restricts or obstructs or interferes with the operation or location or any 

future operation or location of said Streets or Public Ways by the Town for 

a municipal purpose not in competition with Company.  

Company shall at all times comply with applicable state laws including but 

not limited to 35-A M.R.S.A. Chapter 25 (e.g., pole location permits) and 

23 M.R.S.A. §2351(excavation permits). 

4. Construction by the Town

If at any time during the term of this Franchise Agreement the Town shall

elect to alter, or change the grade or location of any Street, or shall engage

in any construction, reconstruction, widening, repairs or other public works

in, on or under the Streets, Company shall, upon reasonable notice by the

Town, remove and relocate its poles, wires, cables, conduits, manholes and

other fixtures (“fixtures”) at its own expense, and in each instance comply

with the Town’s generally applicable, non-discriminatory standards and

specifications. If other owners of utility lines or other users are entitled to

reimbursement of costs for relocations required by this section and the

source of funding for said reimbursement allows it, Company shall have its

relocation costs reimbursed as well.

5. No Interference with Other Fixtures

Company shall not place fixtures above or below ground where the same

will unreasonably interfere with any existing or fully permitted gas,

electricity, telephone fixtures, water hydrants, or other utility use, and all

such fixtures placed in or upon any Street shall be so placed as to comply

with all generally applicable requirements of the Town or other state

authority.

6. Temporary Relocations

Company shall, on request of any Person holding a permit issued by the

Town or other appropriate authority, temporarily move its fixtures to permit

the moving or erection of buildings or other objects, with the expense of

any such temporary removal to be paid in advance by the Person requesting

same, and Company shall be given reasonable notice to arrange for such

temporary relocation. Company shall bear any expense to temporarily move



16 

its fixtures to permit the moving or erection of municipally publicly owned 

or constructed buildings or other objects. 

C. Communications

1. Company Notice

Except in an emergency, and except for interruptions of four hours or less,

Company shall give Subscribers notice, if practical, of any interruption of

service for purposes of maintenance or repair in accordance with applicable

law. In an emergency, Company shall give such notice as is reasonable in

the circumstances. Notice given on the alphanumeric channels on Basic

Cable Service shall be considered sufficient.  During the rebuild of the

Cable System, Company shall not be required to provide 24 hour notice of

any interruption of service if such interruption is the direct result of rebuild

work.  However, Company shall be required to provide written notification

to Subscribers and the Town of planned rebuild work schedules and when

Subscribers may experience service interruptions in excess of four hours.

Company shall use its best efforts to minimize the length of any service

outage due to the rebuild.  Company shall promptly notify the Town in

writing of any significant interruption in the operation of the Cable System. 

For this purpose, a “significant interruption” shall mean any interruption of 

more than four hours to more than ten Subscribers. 

2. Subscriber Requesting Maintenance

Subscribers may request maintenance at the Business Office of Company

or by calling the toll-free telephone number each of which is required by

30-A M.R.S.A. §3010(1)(B).

3. Company Responses

Company responses to such requests shall be governed by the applicable

standards of the Federal Communications Commission and state law.

4. Subscriber-Owned Equipment Excluded

The requirements for maintenance and repair shall not apply to Subscriber

television or radio receivers or other Subscriber-owned equipment.

11. Operations

A. Performance Standards

1. System Design

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5"



17 

a. Upon written request, Company shall provide the Town with a

description of the current system design and operational standards.

Such description shall include at a minimum, Cable materials, (i.e.

coaxial cable or fiber), the bandwidth capacity of the system in

MHz, the channel capacity of the system, bi-directional capability,

overall measured system reliability and performance in respect to

FCC requirements and any other relevant standards that the

Company may wish to describe.

b. If the Company elects to upgrade its system in the Franchise Area,

the Company shall notify the Town.

2. Operations

The Cable System shall be constructed, operated and maintained to comply

with all applicable standards of the Federal Communications Commission.

B. Performance Testing

The Town is entitled to review copies of FCC Proof of Performance upon request. 

C. Emergency Alert System

Company shall comply in full with the requirements for an Emergency Alert

System (EAS) as provided in FCC regulations, 47 CFR Part 11, and with any

applicable State emergency notification requirements not preempted by Federal

law.

D. Video Recording Device/Cable Compatibility

Company shall comply with applicable Federal Communication Commission

standards for compatibility with consumer electronics equipment.

12. Insurance

A. Company Insurance

1. Company shall maintain insurance throughout the term of this Franchise

and any removal period, with an insurance company authorized to conduct

business in the State of Maine, protecting as required in this Franchise,

Company and listing the Town as an additional insured, against any and all

claims for injury or damage to persons or property, both real and personal,

caused by the construction, installation, operation, maintenance or removal

of its Cable System by Company.Grantee.



18 

The amount of such insurance for liability for damage to property shall be 

One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) as to any one occurrence.  The amount 

of such insurance for liability for injury or death to any person shall be no 

less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00) as to any one occurrence. 

The amount of such insurance for excess liability shall be Five Million 

Dollars ($5,000,000.00) in umbrella form.   Policy will contain a provision 

that the Town will be provided thirty (30) days’ written notice prior to any 

cancellation, material modification or non-renewal. 

2. Company shall carry insurance against all claims arising out of the operation

of motor vehicles and general tort or contract liability in the amount of One

Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00). Policy will contain a provision that the

Town will be provided thirty (30) days’ written notice prior to any

cancellation, material modification or non-renewal.

3. All insurance coverage, including Workers’ Compensation shall be

maintained throughout the period of this Franchise.  All expenses incurred

for said insurance shall be at the sole expense of the Company.  Policy will

contain a provision that the Town will be provided thirty (30) days’ written

notice prior to any cancellation, material modification or non-renewal.

4. Company shall provide the Town with certificates of insurance upon

execution of this Agreement and at any time thereafter upon request.

B. Insurance to be provided by subcontractors

1. All Contractors and subcontractors shall provide adequate insurance

coverage. 

B. Insurance to be provided by Subcontractors

All contractors and subcontractors shall provide adequate insurance coverage. 

CBBC. Indemnification of the Town 

Company hereby indemnifies and holds harmless the Town, its selectmen, officers, 

agents, employees, members of boards and committees, with respect to the 

construction, installation, operation and maintenance of the Cable System, harmless 

from and against all expenses, losses and claims, demands, payments, suits, actions, 

recoveries, and judgments of any nature and description, other than as a result of 

the negligence of the Town, including reasonable attorney's fees including 

reasonable attorney's fees, resulting from claims, negligent acts or omissions of 

Company, its agents or employees, in the construction, operation, maintenance, 

repair or service of its Cable System, or by reason of any suit or claim for royalties, 

license fees, or infringement of copyright or patent rights arising from Company’s 

performance under this Franchise Agreement. In the event of the commencement 

of any action against the Town, or its selectmen, officers, agents, employees, or 

Formatted: Underline, Not Highlight

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5"



19 

members of boards and committees which is within the scope of this 

indemnification, the Town will give prompt notice thereof to Company within 

fifteen (15) business days after the Town is formally served in any such action, 

and,so that Company has sufficient time to retain counsel and prepare a timely 

response.   after consultation with the Town, Company will have the right to select 

and furnish counsel for the defense of any such action, at no cost or expense to the 

Town and to settle or compromise any claims and the Town shall cooperate fully.  

The Town’s failure to give timely notice to Company of the commencement of any 

such action shall notnot relieve Company of its obligations under this section unless 

such failure to give timely notice causes actual prejudice to Company's ability to 

defend any such claim. Except for settlements involving only the payment of 

money, no settlement which creates an obligation for the Town, or any such action, 

or any claim therein, shall be made by FranchiseeCompany or by counsel selected 

by FranchiseeCompany without the approval of the Town, which approval shall not 

be unreasonably withheld. 

 Except for settlements involving only the payment of money, no settlement which 

creates an obligation for the Town, or any such action, or any claim therein, shall 

be made by Company or by counsel selected by Company without the approval of 

the Town, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.  The extent of the 

indemnification agreement will not be limited by the requirements for liability 

insurance in this Agreement. 

D. Indemnification of Company

The Town will indemnify Company for any and all claims arising out of

programming of PEG channels, except where Company or its agents or employees

provided the programming.

E. Municipal Immunities

The provisions of this section, including the indemnity provisions in sub-sections

C and D and the procurement by Company of insurance policies meeting the

requirements of this section 12, shall not be interpreted or construed to effect any

waiver, suspension, release or alteration of or to any and all immunity or other

immunities or damage limits as may be available to the Town by law.

13. Performance Bond

A. Performance Bond

Company shall obtain and maintain during the term of this Franchise Agreement,

at its sole cost and expense, and file with Town, an irrevocable performance bond,

running to the Town, with a surety authorized to do business as a surety in the State

of Maine, to guarantee the faithful performance by Company of all of its obligations

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Underline, Highlight



20 

under this Franchise Agreement.  Such performance bond shall be in the amount of 

at least ten twenty-fiveFifteen thousand dollars ($12510,000).  

B. Conditions

The performance bond shall provide, but not be limited to, the following conditions.

There shall be recoverable by the Town, jointly and severally from the principal

and surety, subject to the provisions in Section 23(C), within 30 days after written

request by the Town, any and all penalties due to the Town and any and all damages,

losses, costs and expenses suffered or incurred by the Town resulting from the

failure of Company to comply with the material provisions of this Franchise

Agreement.  Such losses, costs and expenses shall include, but not be limited to,

reasonable attorney’s fees and other legal, consulting and auditing expenses. Not

less than thirty days’ prior notice to the Town shall be provided of Company’s or

the surety’s intention to cancel, materially change, or not to renew the performance

bond.

C. Forfeiture

Subject to the provisions in Section 23C, the total amount of the bond or security

fund shall be forfeited in favor of the Town in the event Company fails to complete

any construction or rebuild obligations or breaches any material provision of this

Franchise Agreement. Neither the provisions of this Section, nor any bonds

accepted by the Town pursuant hereto, nor any damage recovered by the Town

there under, shall be construed to excuse unfaithful performance by the Cable

Operator or limit the liability of the Cable Operator under this Ordinance or the

Franchise Agreement for damages, either to the full amount of the bond or

otherwise.

D. Replenishment

In the event that any portion of the performance bond is forfeited or withdrawn for

any reason, Company shall be required to post an additional bond in an amount

equal to the forfeiture within 30 days of the date of the forfeiture or withdrawal.

Failure to post an additional bond on a timely basis shall constitute a violation of a

material provision of this Franchise Agreement within the meaning of Section 23

hereof.

E. Town Rights

The rights reserved to the Town with respect to the Performance Bond are in

addition to all other rights of the Town, whether reserved by this Franchise

Agreement or authorized by law, and no action, proceeding or exercise of a right

with respect to such sections shall affect any other rights the Town may have.

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Font: 12 pt, Underline

Formatted: Underline



21 

14. Records and Reports

A. Availability of Records to the Town

Upon reasonable written notice to the Company, the Town shall have the right to 

inspect Company’s books and records during Normal Business Hours and on a non-

disruptive basis, as are reasonably necessary to ensure compliance with the material 

terms of this Franchise, including any federal, state, laws or regulations or generally 

applicable ordinances referenced herein. Records should be produced as soon as 

reasonably practicable within five (5) business days of receipt of written request, 

unless for good cause Company responds that a longer amount of time will be 

needed.  Such written notice from the Town shall specifically reference the section 

or subsection of the Franchise which is under review, so that Company may 

organize the necessary books and records for appropriate access by the Town.  

Company shall not be required to maintain any books and records for Franchise 

compliance purposes longer than three (3) years.  Notwithstanding anything to the 

contrary set forth herein, Company shall not be required to disclose information 

that it reasonably deems to be proprietary or confidential in nature, nor disclose any 

of its books and records not relating to the provision of Cable Service in the 

Franchise Area.  The Town shall treat any information disclosed by Company as 

confidential and shall only disclose it to employees, or  the Town’s agents bound 

by a confidentiality and non-disclosure agreement reasonably acceptable to 

Company, or as may be necessary to enforce the provisions hereof.  Company shall 

not be required to provide Subscriber information in violation of Section 631 of the 

Communications Act, and 47 USC §551., or any other information that it is 

prohibited by law from disclosure to third parties. The Town reserves its right to 

copy books and records as allowed under FCC regulation. 

Company shall at all times after the Effective Date maintain records in accordance 

with state and federal law.  :records of written complaints from subscribers in 

accordance with 30-A MRSA §3010 (4). 

1. Records of all written complaints for a period of two (2) years after receipt

by Company (The term “complaint” as used herein refers to complaints 

about any aspect of the Company’s service operations, Complaints recorded 

will not be limited to complaints requiring an employee service call.); 

2. Records of area outages for a period of two (2) years after occurrence,

indicating date, duration, and the number of Subscribers affected, type of 

area outage, and cause; 

3. Records of service calls for repair and maintenance for a period of two (2)

years after resolution by Company, indicating the date and time service was 

required, the date of acknowledgment and date and time service was 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", First line:  0"



22 

scheduled (if it was scheduled), and the date and time service was provided, 

and (if different) the date and time the problem was resolved; 

4. Records of installation/reconnection and requests for service extension for

a period of two (2) years after the request was fulfilled by Company, 

indicating the date of request, date of acknowledgment, and the date and 

time service was extended; and 

5. a map showing the area of coverage for the provisioning of Cable Services.

The Town reserves its right to copy books and records as allowed under FCC 

regulation. 

B. Annual Report

Upon written request from the Town, Company shall provide to the Town a

summary of the Company’s activities in the Town for the previous calendar year

including a summary of:

1. Total number of cable subscribers;

1.2. Total miles of new cable plant installed; 

2.3. Total number of service calls indicating number of dispatches and number 

repaired; 

3.4. Listing of all charges and fees for cable or cable-related services; 

5. All area outages, including date and duration;

6. The total revenues upon which the franchise fee is paid, broken down by

major category; 

4.7. The total franchise fee for the year; 

5.8. Equipment or equivalent funding provided to the PEG channels(s) (if any); 

6.9. Other information Company chooses to include. 

C. Charges for Audits or Tests

Subject to applicate law, Iif an inspection or audit of Company’s records shows that 

Company underpaid the franchise fee by four percent or more for any payment 

period, Company shall reimburse the Town for all reasonable costs including expert 

fees arising from the inspection or audit, and any additional inspection or audit until 

it is determined FranchiseeCompany is in full compliance..  No auditor engaged by 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough, Not Highlight

Formatted: Underline, Not Highlight

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left,  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Strikethrough, Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight



23 

the Grantor shall be compensated on a success based formula (e.g., payment based 

on a percentage of an underpayment, if any). and any additional inspection or audit 

until it is determined Company is in full compliance.  In addition, except as federal 

law prevents the Town from enforcing any standards, if it is determined that 

Company has not materially complied with FCC standards, the Town shall have 

the right to charge all costs arising from these tests, including expert fees, to 

Company until it is determined that Company is in full compliance. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the obligation to pay the Town’s costs for tests of 

the performance of the Cable System shall only arise if the Town’s test is (1) a test 

of an area where Company has represented that it has corrected a problem, and the 

problem was not in fact corrected; (2) a second test of an area by the Town, where 

Company had been notified of the problem and been given an opportunity to cure 

it; or (3) where Company challenged the validity of a Town test, and the Town 

agrees to retest, and the re-test confirms the validity of the initial Town test. These 

charges are incidental to the enforcement of the Franchise; they do not limit any 

right the Town may have to exercise any other remedy. 

Municipal Benefits 

15. Franchise Fee

Company shall provide a Franchise Fee to the Town or its designee, equal to five 

percent (5%) of Company’s Gross Annual Revenues in the Town.  Upon ninety 

(90) days’ notice to the Company, the Town, by action of its Board of Selectmen,

may increase or decrease the Franchise Fee, up to a maximum of five percent (5%)

of Company’s Gross Annual Revenues.

A. Payment

Company shall pay the Franchise Fee to the Town on a quarterly basis, no later than 

forty-five (45) days after the end of the calendar quarter for which payment is made. 

The payment for the last quarter of the last year of the term of this Franchise shall 

be due and payable sixty (60) days after the end of that quarter.  Upon request, 

Company shall provide a statement showing the basis for the payment, including a 

breakdown by category (e.g., basic service, home shopping channels, advertising) 

number of subscribers and source of Gross Annual Revenues for the quarter. 

Company shall provide basic subscriber numbers annually upon request and such 

information shall be treated by the Town as confidential in accordance with Section 

14A above.  

Due Date Quarter 

May 15 First (January 1 – March 31) 

August 15 Second (April 1 – June 30) 

November 15 Third (July 1 – September 30) 

February 15 Fourth (October 1 – December 31) 



24 

B. Late Payments

In the event that the fees herein required are not tendered on or before the dates fixed

in Section 1545A above, interest due on such fee shall accrue on any and all overdue

franchise fees at the rate of two percent over prime.elve percent (12%) simple interest

per annum. from the date due at one and one-half percent (1.5 %) per month.rate per 

year equal to the prime interest rate published in the Wall Street Journal. one and one-

half percent (1.5 %) per month. 

C. Acceptance of Payment

Acceptance of payment by the Town shall not be construed as accord that the amount

paid is the correct amount.  The Town reserves its rights to inspect relevant books and

seek any underpayments due.  If the Town has not begun process to challenge or audit

payment of franchise fee within 2436 months of receipt of final annual payment, and

breakdowns provided pursuant to subsection A have been provided, are certified,

payment is deemed accurate.  If the breakdowns provided pursuant to subsection A are

not certified, the time frame hereunder is 3648 months.

16. Public, Educational and Governmental Access (PEG) 

A. Use of PEG Access Channel

Channel capacity for public, educational and governmental (“PEG”) access shall

be provided in accordance with federal law, 47 USC §531 and §546  as further set

forth below.

B. Channel

Company shall continue to provide the Town with one shared channel for public,

educational and governmental (“PEG”) access programming.  Said PEG channel

shall be located on the Company’s basic tier of service. To facilitate live

programming within the Town of Lyman, subject to applicable law, Company shall

provide a video and audio origination point at the Town Office located at 11 South 

Waterboro Road, Lyman Maine. 

C. Exclusive Use, Channel Designations and Interconnectivity

1. Town, or its designee(s), shall have the exclusive use of the PEG Access

Channel.  Use of PEG Access Channel shall be for the exclusive benefit of

Company’s Subscribers and for locally producedlocal interest, non-

commercial purposes and subject to such rules as the Town, or its

Commented [A2]:  

Commented [A3]: Full section to be discussed, Lyman doesn’t 
currently have a PEG channel 

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Highlight



25 

designee(s), may adopt. 

2. 2. Except as permitted by applicable law, tThere shall be no charge by 

Company for the use of the PEG Access Channels. Company shall comply 

with MRSA 3010 §5-A and B. 

3. Company shall not appropriate PEG programming for use by company on

any other channel except PEG channels or in any other jurisdiction covered

by the Company  without the consent of the originating PEG producer.

3. 
Subject 

4. Unless Subject to applicable law, and unless otherwise agreed to by the

parties, PEG channels shall be carried on the basic tier.

5. 

4. Company shall make good faith efforts to include appropriate designation

of the Town’s PEG Access Channels on channel cards and channel listings

provided to Subscribers in a manner comparable to which it identifies

other Channels.  This provision does not obligate Company to list PEG

programming content on said channel cards and channel listings. If

Channels are selected by a viewer through a menu system, Company shall

display the Town’s PEG Access Channels designation in a similar manner 

as other channels. 

6. If Channels are selected by a viewer through a menu system, Company

shall display the Town’s PEG Access Channels designation in a similar 

manner as other channels. 

Within 90 days of request by the Town and upon execution of a contract 

with Company’s commercial services department, Company shall install 

the video return feed connection and transmission equipment from the 

Lyman Town Hall to Time Warnerthe Company’s Head End, at Town’s 

expense, to permit the transmission of the PEG programming on the PEG 

channel to (at a minimum) the cable subscribers in the Town of Lyman.  

In the event of a relocation of the facilities, Company shall provide a 

connection to the relocated facility under the terms of a contract with the 

commercial services department.  

5. If a PEG channel is relocated by Company, company shall reimburse the

Town of Lyman for out-of-pocket documented costs associated with 

changing logos, letterhead, business cards etc. to reflect a new channel 

number not to exceed $200.00. Town and Company may also negotiate the 

promotion of this change. Company will provide the Town with at least 30 

days notice of any relocation of any PEG channel. 

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  1" + Indent at:  1.5"

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Strikethrough, Highlight

Formatted: Strikethrough, Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left:  1.5",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: No underline, Not Highlight

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  1" + Indent at:  1.5"

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: List Paragraph, Left, Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  1" + Indent at:  1.5"

Formatted: Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2,
3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  1" +
Indent at:  1.5"

Formatted: Strikethrough, Highlight

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: Normal, Justified, Indent: Left:  1.5"

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  1" + Indent at:  1.5"



26 

7. Provided that Company has existing unutilized fiber available and

the connection involves a standard aerial drop of 200 feet. 

D. PEG Facilities and Equipment Support:

1. Within sixty (60) days of completion of the video return feed connection

outlined in paragraph 6 above and written request to Company by Grantor, 

Company shall provide to the Town of Lyman a PEG capital grant in the 

amount of $32,558 to be utilized by the Town of Lyman to purchase Public 

Educational and Governmental access facilities and equipment determined by 

the parties during renewal discussions.  Such amount, to the extent utilized in 

accordance with the provisions of federal law, are in addition to and may not be 

counted as an offset from any Franchise Fee imposed on Company.  On or 

before February 1st of each year, the City shall provide Charter Company with 

an itemized accounting for the preceding calendar year of the distribution and 

utilization of the PEG Grant.  

2. With respect to any new or existing PEG channel as defined in this franchise

and subject to 30-A MRSA §3010 (5), and 47 U.S.C. §522 Definitions, the 

equipment associated with the interconnection of PEG transmission facilities 

between a PEG facility and the Company’s head end within the Company’s 

cable system as well as the formatting of PEG programming for transmission 

to the subscriber is considered “PEG facility or equipment” and the costs 

thereof shall be borne by the Company. 

1.3.An incumbent Company that is required to pay a PEG fee, grant or any similar 

payment to the Municipality under the terms of this franchise agreement shall 

continue to make such payments in full to the Municipality if this franchise 

agreement expires or Company chooses not to seek a renewal or voluntarily 

terminates it’s local franchise agreement but continues to offer cable service 

within the Municipality. 

E. Minimum PEG Signal Quality and Transmission Standards

The PEG access signal and channel shall meet FCC Technical Standards. All 

PEG Channels shall be provided to subscribers without conversion to a lower 

resolution than supplied to Company by the Town. The PEG access signal and 

channel capacity shall be of similar quality and functionality to that offered on 

adjacent channels. Company shall not take any actions that alter or otherwise 

adversely affect the functionality, formatting or transmission of PEG 

programming that result in deterioration of the functionality of PEG signals, the 

transmission of PEG programming, the picture quality, or the absence of closed 

captions and Secondary Audio Programming as compared to adjacent channels. 

Company shall maintain and upgrade the video return feed connection and PEG 

transmission equipment from the Sebago Town Hall to the PEG Access 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Normal, Justified, Indent: Left:  1.5"

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Superscript

Formatted: Strikethrough, Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.25",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: Underline, Font color: Custom
Color(RGB(34,34,34)), Pattern: Clear (White), Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted:  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.25"

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

Commented [A4]: Charter will discuss with the Town the 
process for carriage of PEG in HD.  

Also, it appears the Town pulled verbiage from a Sebago 
agreement? This references the Town Hall in Sebago? 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight



27 

provider to permit the transmission of HD PEG programming on the PEG 

channel to (at a minimum) the cable subscribers in the Town of Lyman. .  

The channel shall be delivered to the subscriber in the digital format. 

F. PEG Promotion

In the event that the Company implements local advertising sales on Channels received

by Subscribers within the Town, the Town or its designee(s) may want to seek time for

non-commercial PEG Access program or service promotional spots on said channels.

Nothing in this section shall be construed to require the Company to provide access to

promotional spots at no cost to the Town or its designee(s).

17. Build-out

A. Area To Be Served

1. Pursuant to MRSA §3008, §5-B, Company shall make Cable Service

available to every residential dwelling unit within the Town where the 

minimum density is at least fifteen  (15) year round single family residences 

per aerial mile without contract term pre no additional conditions providing 

however, that any plant extension is measured from the  Company’s closest 

technologically feasible tie-in point that is delivering Cable Service as of 

the date of such request for service and Company is able to obtain from 

property owners any necessary easements and/or permits on terms and 

conditions acceptable to Company.  Subject to the density requirement, 

Company shall offer Cable Service at standard installation rates to all new 

homes or previously unserved homes located within 125 aerial feet of 

Company’s point of connection to its existing distribution system.  For non-

Standard Installations (those exceeding 125 aerial feet or underground) 

Company shall, upon receipt of payment and pending any identified 

construction or other issues (e.g., make ready, weather) offer said service 

within thirty (30) days of a Subscriber requesting such for aerial 

installations and sixty (60) days of a Subscriber requesting such for 

underground installations. 

2. Company shall have the right, but not the obligation, to extend the Cable

System into any portion of the Town where another operator is providing

Cable Service or into any annexed area which is not contiguous to the

Service Area.  Company shall not be obligated to provide service to any

area where it is financially or technically infeasible to do so.  Company at

its discretion may make Cable Service available to businesses within the

Service Area.

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: No underline



28 

3. Provided Company has at least ninety (90) days’ prior written notice

concerning the opening of residential subdivision trenching, or of the

installation of conduit for the location of utilities, and the density

requirements outlined above are met, it shall install its cable in such

trenching or conduits or may seek permission to utilize alternative trenching

or conduits within a comparable time frame.  The Town, or its designee,

shall exercise reasonable efforts to have the Planning Board and developers

give timely written notice of trenching and underground construction to

Company.  Developer shall be responsible for the digging and back-filling

of all trenches.

18. Cable Service to Municipal Buildings

Upon written request from the Town, Company will offer, without charge and on a voluntary basis, 

one outlet of and equipment for, Basic Cable Service to the locations listed in Exhibit A, provided 

that the locations are located up to 125 feet from Company’s existing distribution system and 

capable of an aerial installation.  Subject to applicable law, Company shall provide and maintain 

without charge, one cable drop, including standard installation of basic cable service to the 

municipally owned and occupied facilities serviceable by a standard aerial drop located within 125 

feet of Company’s distribution system and capable of an aerial drop and listed in Exhibit A. The 

provision of these drops, to the extent utilized in accordance with the provisions of federal law, 

may not be counted as an offset from any Franchise Fee imposed on Company. The Municipality 

shall be responsible for equipment charges, if any.  

Consumer Issues 

19. Rates & Services

A. Prices and Charges

1. All rates, fees, charges, deposits and associated terms and conditions to be

imposed by Company for any Cable Service as of the Effective Date shall

be in accordance with all applicable FCC’s rate regulations.  Before any

new or modified rate, fee, or charge is imposed, Company shall follow the

applicable FCC and State notice requirements and rules and notify affected

Subscribers, which notice may be by any means permitted under applicable

law.  Nothing in this Franchise shall be construed to prohibit the reduction

or waiver of charges in conjunction with promotional campaigns for the

purpose of attracting or retaining Subscribers.

2. Company shall annually publish and provide to town upon written request

and to each subscriber or potential subscriber who so requests, a statement 

of its then established standard installation rate.  Subject to applicable 

federal and state law, Ccomplete information concerning billing and 

collection procedures, including dispute resolution, procedures for ordering 

changes in, or termination of services, and company’s discontinuation 

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.94", Hanging:  0.56", Numbered
+ Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5", Tab
stops: Not at  0.5"



29 

policies and procedures shall be provided to each subscriber at least 

annually.  

2.3. The Town acknowledges that certain costs of Public, Educational and 

Governmental (“PEG”) Access and other Franchise imposed costs, may be 

passed through to Subscribers in accordance with federal law. 

B. Basic Cable Service

Company shall make available a Basic Cable Service tier to all subscribers  to the 

extent required by 47 USC §534 and applicable regulations, including 76.1618 of 

the FCC Rules and Regulations, and shall provide notice of the basic tier pursuant 

to 30-A M.R.S.A. §3010. 

C. Programming

Pursuant to federal law, all Video Programming decisions, excluding PEG Access 

Programming, are at the sole discretion of Company, except that pursuant to 47 

USC §544(b)(2) (B) and (h) and 47 CFR §76.1603 the Town may require “broad 

categories” of programming. 

20. Rights of Individuals

A. Customer Service

1. Company shall comply with all customer service federal laws, regulations of the

FCC and state laws as they may be amended from time to time.

The Company shall retain sufficient Customer Service Representatives (“CSR”s) 

and telephone line capacity to ensure that telephone calls to service/repair and billing 

inquiry lines are answered by a CSR within thirty (30) seconds or less, and that any 

transfers are made within thirty (30) seconds.  The Customer shall be able to speak 

with a Customer Service Representative within five (5) minutes.  If the call is 

answered by Interactive Voice Response (IVR), the IVR must allow the option to 

speak with a CSR within no more than three minutes.  If a customer has exercised 

the option to speak with a CSR, the customer shall be able to speak with a CSR 

within 30 seconds once the call is transferred during normal business hours.  These 

standards shall be met no less than ninety (80) percent of the time, measured on a 

quarterly basis under normal operating conditions.  If requested by the Town, 

compliance with this standard shall be reported by the Company to the Town on an 

annual basis.  Notwithstanding the provisions of 1 M.R.S.A. § 302 or any other law 

to the contrary, this section, when enacted, shall govern any current and future 

Company(s). 

Formatted: Body Text1, Left, Space Before:  0 pt,
Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start
at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.94" + Indent at: 
1.19", Widow/Orphan control, Adjust space between Latin
and Asian text, Adjust space between Asian text and
numbers, Tab stops:  0.5", Left +  1", Left + Not at  0.35"

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Underline,
Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: (Default) Times New Roman, Underline



30 

 

 

B. Protection of Subscriber Privacy 

 

Company shall comply with all applicable federal and state Subscriber privacy laws 

and regulations, including 47 USC §551 and regulations adopted pursuant thereto 

and 30-A M.R.S.A. §3010. 

 

 The Company shall make available for inspection by a Subscriber at a 

reasonable time and place all personal subscriber information that the 

Company maintains regarding said Subscriber. 

 

 A Subscriber may obtain from the Company a copy of any or all of the 

personal subscriber information regarding him or her maintained by the 

Company. The Company may require a fee for making said copy. 

 

 A Subscriber may challenge the accuracy, completeness, retention, use or 

dissemination of any item of personal subscriber information. Such challenges 

and related inquiries about the handling of subscriber information shall be 

directed to the Company. The Company shall change any such information 

upon a reasonable showing by any Subscriber that such information is 

inaccurate. 

 

 

C. Employee Identification Cards 

 

All of Company’s employees, and subcontractors, including repair and sales 

personnel, entering private property shall be required to display an identification 

card issued or approved by Company indicating that employee or subcontractor is 

working on behalf of Company. 

 

  

D. Privacy Written Notice 

 

At the time of entering into an agreement to provide any Cable Service or other service 

to a Subscriber, and annually thereafter to all Cable System Subscribers, the Company 

shall provide Subscribers with written notice, as required by Section 631(a)(1) of the 

Cable Act, (47 USC §551) which, at a minimum, clearly and conspicuously explains 

the Company’s practices regarding the collection, retention, uses, and dissemination 

of personal subscriber information, and describing the Company’s policy for the 

protection of subscriber privacy. 

 

E. Monitoring 

 

Company may only monitor customer accounts consistent with applicable federal and 

state law. 

  

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Bold, Underline

Formatted: Indent: First line:  0", Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5"

Formatted: Normal, Indent: First line:  0"



31 

21. Unauthorized Connections/Continuity of Service

It shall be the right of all Subscribers to receive Cable Service insofar as their financial 

and other obligations to the Company are honored, provided that the Company shall 

have no obligation to provide Cable Service to any Person who, or which the 

Company has a reasonable basis to believe, is using an unauthorized Converter or is 

otherwise obtaining Cable Service without required payment thereof or who threatens 

Company’s employees or damages Company’s equipment. The Company shall 

ensure that all Subscribers receive continuous, uninterrupted Service, except for 

necessary Service interruptions. To the extent required by applicable law, Wwhen 

necessary non-routine Service interruptions in excess of four hours can be anticipated, 

the Company shall notify Subscribers of such interruption(s) in advance. In the event 

service to any subscriber is interrupted for 6 or more consecutive hours in a 30-day 

period, the franchiseeCompany will, upon request, grant that subscriber a pro rata 

credit or rebate, ref:  30-A M.R.S.A. §3010. 

22. Subscriber Complaints

A. Dispute Resolution

Subject to applicable law, the Company shall establish a procedure for resolution of

Complaints by Subscribers.  Said procedure shall at a minimum include the provisions

of 30-A M.R.S.A. §3010.

B. Complaint Policy/Investigation

Company shall establish a procedure for resolution of Complaints by Subscribers.

Said Procedure shall at a minimum include the provisions of 30-A M.R.S.A.

§3010.provide the Town a copy of Company’s complaint policy annually and no

later than 30-days after any revisions.  If Company maintains a publicly available 

website, Company’s complaint policy shall be posted on its website. 

Upon reasonable notice, the Company shall expeditiously investigate and resolve all 

Complaints regarding the quality of Service, equipment malfunctions and similar 

matters. In the event that a Subscriber is aggrieved, the Town or its designee(s) shall 

be responsible for receiving and acting upon such Subscriber complaints and/or 

inquiries and the Company shall work in good faith to resolve such complaints. , as 

follows: 

1. 
2. Upon the written request of the Town or its designee(s), the Company shall,

within ten (10) business days after receiving such request, send a written report 

to the Town with respect to any Complaint. Such report shall provide a full 

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: No underline, Not Highlight

Formatted: No underline, Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Underline



32 

explanation of the investigation, finding and corrective steps, if any, taken by 

the Company. 

3.1. Should a Subscriber have an unresolved Complaint regarding cable television 

operations, the Subscriber shall be entitled to file his or her Complaint with 

the Town or its designee(s), who shall have primary responsibility for the 

continuing administration of this Renewal License and the implementation of 

Complaint procedures.  The Subscriber shall thereafter meet jointly with the 

Town or its designee(s) and a representative of the Company, within thirty 

(30) days of the Subscriber's filing of his or her Complaint, in order to fully

discuss and resolve such matter in accordance with applicable laws. 

23. Liquidated DamagesPenalties

A. A. Amounts Right to Assess Liquidated Damages 

Because Charter’s failure to comply with material terms of this Agreement may result in 

harm to the Town, and because it will be difficult to measure the extent of such injury, the 

Town may assess liquidated damages against Company in the amount of Fifty Dollars 

($50.00) per day for each day the violation continues, provided Charter has had notice and 

an opportunity to cure in accordance with section 237C and the Town is not pursuing other 

penalties or remedies.  The Town shall provide Company with written notice that it intends 

to assess liquidated damages as a remedy.  Such damages shall be an exclusive remedy for 

the time period in which they are assessed, provided, however, they shall not be a substitute 

for specific performance by Company or legal action by the Town once assessment of 

liquidated damages ceases, but shall be in addition to such specific performance or legal 

action.  Nothing herein is intended to allow duplicative recovery from or payments by 

Company or its surety. 

The first day for which liquidated damages may be assessed, if there has been no cure after 

the end of the applicable cure period, shall be the date after the end of the applicable cure 

period, including any extension of the cure period granted by the Town.  Liquidated 

damages may not be assessed for a time period exceeding fifty (50) days per violation.  The 

Town may commence revocation proceedings and/or initiate an action in law or equity in 

a court of competent jurisdiction after the assessment of liquidated damages or in lieu of 

liquidated damages. 

The amount of all liquidated damages per annum shall not exceed five thousand dollars 

($5,000) in the aggregate.  With respect to liquidated damages, all similar violations or 

failures from the same factual events affecting multiple Subscribers shall be assessed 

as a single violation, and a violation or failure may only be assessed under any one 

material term. 

Because Company’s failure to comply with provisions of this 
Agreement will result in injury to the Town, and because it will be 

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5",
Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start
at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at: 

Formatted: Don't hyphenate, Tab stops: Not at  0.5"

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.75",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: Underline



33 

difficult to estimate the extent of such injury, the Town and Company 
agree to the following liquidated damages for uncured material 
violations. These damages represent both parties' best estimate of the 
damages resulting from the specified injury. 

For failure to comply with the material provisions of this agreement: 
twenty-fiveFifty dollars ($2550)/day. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
the Town reserves all rights to seek other remedies at law and equity for 
breach of this Agreement, including but not limited to injunctive relief, 
and the Town shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys fees and costs 
incurred in the enforcement of this Agreement. 

B. Date of Violation, Notice

The date of the material violation will be the date the Company receives 
written notice of the violation. 

C. Procedure for Liquidated Damages

Before the Town may assess any liquidated damages under this Franchise 

Agreement: 

1. The Town shall notify the Company, in writing, of the alleged failure or

material violation, which notice shall specify the alleged failure or violation 

with reasonable particularity. 

2. The Company shall, within ninetythirty (930) days after receipt of the notice

or such longer period as the Town may specify in such notice, either cure 

the alleged failure or violation or, in a written response to the Town’s 

Manager, either present facts and arguments in refutation or excuse of such 

alleged failure or violation or state that the alleged failure or violation will 

be cured and set forth the method and time schedule for accomplishing such 

cure. 

3. Unless the Selectmen determine that the matter has been resolved, the

Company’s response shall be submitted to the Elected Officials, to schedule 

a public hearing at which the Elected Officials shall determine (i) whether 

a failure or violation has occurred; (ii) whether such failure or violation is 

excusable; and (iii) whether such failure or violation has been or will be 

cured by the Town; and (iv) the appropriate remedy for the failure or 

violation. 

4. The Town shall provide thirty (30) days’ written notice of the public hearing

to the Company.  During the public hearing, Company shall have the right 

to appear and be heard, including the opportunity to present evidence, 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, Underline

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, Underline



34 

question witnesses, if any, and the hearing shall follow the procedures set 

forth for public hearings. If the Elected Officials determine that such failure 

has not occurred, or that such failure either has been or will be cured in a 

manner and in accordance with a reasonable schedule satisfactory to the 

Elected Officials or that the failure is excusable, such determination shall 

conclude the matter, unless Company fails to comply with the schedule for 

cure. 

5. Company shall have the right to appeal any adverse ruling to a court of

competent jurisdiction. 

24. Transfers

A. Company’s Right to Transfer

Neither this Franchise Agreement, nor any rights or obligations of the Company in 

or pursuant to this Franchise Agreement or the Cable System shall be transferred in 

part or as a whole, by assignment, trust, lease, sublease, and is not to be sold, 

transferred, leased, assigned, or disposed of in part or as a whole, either by forced 

sale, merger, consolidation, or otherwise, nor shall title thereto, either legal or 

equitable, or any right or interest therein, pass to or vest in any Person, nor shall 

any change in control of the Company or the Cable System occur, either by any act 

of the Company or by any parent company of the Company, by operation of law or 

otherwise, in each such case without the prior consent of the Town, which consent 

shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. , and which shall be expressed in 

writing,  subject to reasonable and lawful conditions, including, but not limited to, 

curing any Franchise non-compliance.  Any assignment or transfer without such 

prior written consent or without “deemed consent” under applicable federal law 

shall constitute a violation of a material provision of any this Franchise Agreement. 

Notwithstanding the preceding the Town may withhold consent until such time as 

the proposed successor to Company or transferee herein has reasonably established 

to the Town’s satisfaction that such party has financial and technical capacity equal 

to or greater than Company. 

No consent will be required for a transfer in trust, mortgage or hypothecation to 

secure an indebtedness, provided that such transaction will not in any respect 

prevent the Company or any successor from complying with all of its obligations 

under this Franchise Agreement, but the exercise of any right to foreclose or seize 

such pledged assets shall be subject to the provisions of this paragraph.  No transfer 

of control will be deemed to have taken place if the transfer is to an entity 

controlling, controlled by, or under common control with the Company provided 

such entity has equal or greater financial resources than the transferor and provided 

the transfer does not involve a change in the management or day to day operations 

of the Company. 

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: Times New Roman, Underline, Not
Highlight

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: No underline, Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Underline, Highlight

Formatted: No underline, Not Highlight



35 

No consent will be required for a transfer in trust, mortgage or hypothecation to 

secure an indebtedness, provided that such transaction will not in any respect 

prevent the Company or any successor from complying with all of its obligations 

under this Franchise Agreement, but the exercise of any right to foreclose or seize 

such pledged assets shall be subject to the provisions of this paragraph.  No transfer 

of control will be deemed to have taken place if the transfer is to an entity 

controlling, controlled by, or under common control with the Company provided 

such entity has equal or greater financial resources than the transferor and provided 

the transfer does not involve a change in the management or day to day operations 

of the Company. 

B. Town’s Right to Approve

Pursuant to 47 USC §537, the Town, and subsection A above, as Local Franchise 

Authority, reserves its right to approve a Franchise Transfer.   Such approval shall 

not be unreasonably withheld. 

A transfer or assignment of a Franchise or control thereof between entities under 

common control, between affiliated companies, or between parent and subsidiary 

corporations, shall not constitute a transfer or assignment of a Franchise or control 

thereof.  An “affiliated company” is any person or entity that directly or indirectly 

or through one or more intermediaries controls, is controlled by, or is under 

common control with another person or entity. 

For purposes of this Section, any sale, assignment or any other disposition of a fifty 

twenty percent (250%) ownership interest of the Company or parent company of 

the Company to any one Person or group of Persons acting in concert, in one 

transaction or a series of related transactions, shall be deemed to be a change of 

control of the Franchisee.  The word “control” as used in this section is not limited 

to major stockholders but includes actual working control in whatever manner 

exercised.  A transfer or assignment of a Franchise or control thereof between 

entities under common control, between affiliated companies, or between parent 

and subsidiary corporations, shall not constitute a transfer or assignment of a 

Franchise or control thereof.  An “affiliated company” is any person or entity that 

directly or indirectly or through one or more intermediaries controls, is controlled 

by, or is under common control with another person or entity. 

C. Notice to Town

Company shall provide to the Town Notice of the proposed transfer.  The contents 

of the Notice shall include: 

Formatted: Underline

Commented [A5]: This is the same paragraph as above 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Strikethrough



36 

1. An original and three (3) copies of its FCC Form 394 (or such other or successor

form used to request consent to any such Transfer or assignment), which form 

shall fully describe the action or proposed action and clearly state the basis on 

which the Transfer or assignment should be approved. The Company shall 

include with the application complete responses to the informational requests 

attached to this Franchise Agreement as Exhibit A.  The request for approval of 

Transfer or assignment shall also contain all reasonably appropriate 

documentation and such additional information as the Town may reasonably 

require, so it may adequately investigate, review and determine if the proposed 

successor entity is technically and financially able to complete the terms of the 

Franchise Agreement provided that to the extent the Town requests additional 

information other than as described in FCC Form 394Exhibit A, the Town shall 

issue such request to the Company within thirty (30) days of receipt of the 

application, and the Company shall respond to such requests for additional 

information within thirty (30) days.  The Transfer or assignment form shall be 

signed by the Company and by the proposed transferee or by its representative, 

evidence of whose authority shall be submitted with such petition; and  

2. Certification by transferee that it will accept the provisions of this Franchise

Agreement for the remainder of the Franchise Term.

D. Time to Review

Subject to applicable federal law, the Town will have 120 days from receipt of the 

Notice to take action on the request for transfer.  The Town need not, but may, act 

to approve the transfer. If the Town does not act within 120 days of receipt of 

Notice, the transfer shall be deemed approved. 

E. Public Hearing

The Town may conduct a public hearing on the proposed transfer no later than 90 

days after the receipt of the notice of transfer. 

For purposes of determining whether it shall consent to any such change of control 

and ownership, the Town shall inquire into the legal, financial, management and 

technical qualifications of the prospective controlling or owning Person. including, 

but not limited to, such Person's cable-related experience and service record, if any, 

in other communities, the changes, if any, it intends to make in the operations, 

maintenance, technology and services of the Cable System serving Lyman, any and 

all matters relative to the ability and likelihood of such Person adhering to all of the 

terms and conditions of this Franchise Agreement, and whether the proposed 

change of control and ownership is in the public interest. 

G. Transferee Obligations

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: No underline

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: No underline, Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Font color: Auto

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.25",  No bullets or numbering

Formatted: Outline numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering
Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:
 1.06" + Indent at:  1.31"

Commented [A6]: Both sentences say almost the same thing 

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Underline



37 

Any proposed controlling or owning Person or transferee approved by the Town 

shall be subject to all of the terms and conditions contained in the Franchise 

Agreement. , including curing any Franchise non-compliance. 

H. Costs

The Company shall reimburse the Town for its reasonable expenses (including reasonable 

attorney’s fees) incurred as a result of the reviewing and acting upon the Company’s request to 

transfer. The Company’s liability for reimbursing the Town shall not exceed 

_____________________________. 

F.I. No Waiver or Release 

The consent or approval of the Town to any Transfer of the Cable System or this 

Franchise Agreement granted to the Company shall not constitute a waiver or 

release of the rights of the Town in, and shall by its terms be expressly subordinate 

to, the terms and conditions of this Franchise Agreement. 

25. Successors/Assigns

The obligations of this Franchise apply to any and all successors and assigns of the

Company, unless the Town expressly and in writing agrees to release the successors and

assigns from this Franchise or any portion thereof.

26. Renewal

This Franchise may be renewed by the parties in accordance with state and federal law.

The Town may assess reasonable fees to defray the costs of public notice, advertising and 

other expenses incurred by the Town in acting upon applications for renewal Franchise 

agreements. 

27. Revocation and Termination

A. Right to Revoke or Terminate

In addition to all other rights and powers of the Town by virtue of this Franchise

Agreement and after notice and opportunity to cure pursuant to section 257B, the

Town may revoke this Franchise Agreement and all rights and privileges of

Company hereunder in the event Company either:

1. Violates anyone or more material provision of this Franchise Agreement or

any rule, order or determination of the Town made pursuant thereto where

such violation remains uncured for a period of thirty ninety days following

Formatted: No underline, Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", Hanging:  0.5", Numbered +
Level: 1 + Numbering Style: A, B, C, … + Start at: 9 +
Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  3.5" + Indent at:  3.75"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.5", First line:  0"

Formatted: Highlight

Commented [A7]: Need to check reference  



38 

written notice to Company by the Town that such violation is deemed to 

exist unless cure is not feasible in such time period in which event the 

parties shall meet and agree to a cure schedule; 

2. AttemptsAttempts to evade any material provision of this Franchise

Agreement or pPPpPrractices any fraud or deceit upon the Town; or 

2. 

3. Fails to provide or maintain in full force and effect the insurance coverages

and the performance bond as required by the terms of this Franchise

Agreement, where such violation remains uncured for a period of thirty (30) 

days or,  

3.4. Arbitrarily ceases to provide service over the Cable System or fails to 

restore service after ninety-six (96) consecutive hours of interrupted service 

except in cases of force majeure or when approval of such interruption is 

obtained from the Town. 

B. Procedures to Revoke or Terminate

The Town shall follow the following procedures in revoking a franchise:

1. The Town shall provide to Company the Town’s notice of intention to

revoke this Franchise.  The written notice shall be sent by certified or

overnight mail and shall describe in reasonable detail the specific violations

alleged to have occurred;

2. Company shall have ninety (90) days from receipt of notice to either correct

the alleged violation, or, dispute the Town’s allegations.  In the event that

by nature of the alleged violation, such violation cannot be cured within

such ninety (90) day period, the parties shall meet and agree to a cure

schedule;

3. If Company disputes the Town’s allegations, the Town shall review the

dispute and make its determination as to whether a violation has occurred;

4. If the Town continues to maintain that a violation did occur, the Town shall

notify Company in writing.  Company shall then either remedy the violation

within ninety (90) days or notify the Town in writing that Company

continues to dispute the allegations;

5. Upon Company’s failure to remedy the violation within the time period

prescribed or upon receipt of Company’s written position pursuant to

subsection 4, Town may revoke this Franchise Agreement by providing

Company written notice of revocation or by following the procedure

outlined in Section C below.

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5",
Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start
at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at: 
0.5", Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No border), Left:
(No border), Right: (No border), Between : (No border)

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: Font: 11.5 pt, Font color: Black

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0.5",  No bullets or
numbering

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left:  1", Hanging:  0.5",
Numbered + Level: 1 + Numbering Style: 1, 2, 3, … + Start
at: 1 + Alignment: Left + Aligned at:  0.25" + Indent at: 
0.5", Border: Top: (No border), Bottom: (No border), Left:
(No border), Right: (No border), Between : (No border)

Formatted: Font: KLHLBF+TimesNewRoman, 12 pt, Font
color: Auto

Formatted: No underline, Not Highlight

Formatted: Indent: Left:  1.5", First line:  0"

Formatted: No underline, Not Highlight

Formatted: Underline

Formatted: Font: KLHLBF+TimesNewRoman, Underline

Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: First line:  0"



39 

 

C. Public Hearing 

 

The Town shall conduct a public hearing on the revocation.  Such hearing shall 

provide the Company with due process, including the right to participate in the 

hearing, present evidence, and examine witnesses. The Town shall issue a written 

determination of its findings based solely on the evidence presented at the hearing 

and applicable law.  Such public hearing must take place no less than 30 days prior 

to the decision to revoke. 

 

D. Judicial Review 

 

Company shall have the right to seek judicial review of the Town’s determination 

to revoke and the reviewing court shall review the Town’s determination de novo. 

 

28. Abandonment 

 

If company shall cease providing service in the Town, it shall do so pursuant to 30-A 

M.R.S.A. §3008(3)(B)., the Company shall remove all of its supporting structures, poles, 

transmission and distribution systems, and other appurtenances from the Public Ways and 

shall restore the areas to their original condition as is reasonably possible and as soon as 

reasonably possible.  If such removal is not complete within six (6) months of such end of 

service, the Town may deem any property not removed as having been abandoned.  Upon 

written request of the Company, the Town may waive this requirement of removal for good 

cause shown. 

 

29. Expiration of Agreement 

 

Upon the expiration and non-renewal, or revocation of this Franchise Agreement and 

exhaustion of all judicial appeals, the Cable System shall be disposed of according to 47 

USC §546 and this Franchise Agreement. 

 

30. Changes in Law 

 

In the event a federal or state law, regulation or decision by a court of competent jurisdiction 

renders a provision in this Franchise Agreement void or otherwise unenforceable, the provision 

shall be considered preempted.  This preemption will last for as long as the law, regulation or 

decision is effective; if the law, regulation or decision is subsequently repealed, rescinded, 

amended, voided, overturned or otherwise changed so that the preemption is nullified, the 

provision shall thereupon return to full force and effect as provided by such proceeding and shall 

be binding and enforceable in accordance with the terms thereof..  In the event any change to state 

or federal law occurring during the term of this Franchise eliminates the requirement for any person 

desiring to provide video service or Cable Service in the Town to obtain a franchise, then Company 

shall have the right to terminate this Franchise and operate the system under the terms and 

conditions established in applicable law.  If Company chooses to terminate this Franchise pursuant 

to this provision, this Franchise shall be deemed to have expired by its terms on the effective date 

Formatted: Font: Italic

Formatted: Strikethrough



40 

of any such change in law, whether or not such law allows existing franchise agreements to 

continue until the date of expiration provided in any existing franchise. 

31. Amendments

This Franchise Agreement may be amended in the future by written agreement of both

parties to reflect changed circumstances, including changes in federal or state law.  This

Franchise Agreement shall not be amended or modified except by written agreement

executed in the same manner as this Franchise Agreement.  Where applicable, the

amendment shall be consistent with the provisions of 47 USC §545.

32. Subject to Approval

This Franchise Agreement is contingent upon the Board of Selectmen duly adopting the 

terms contained herein pursuant to 30-A M.R.S. § 3008(2) and (5). 

33. Miscellaneous

A. Force Majeure

The Parties shall not be responsible for any delay or failure to perform their

obligations under this Franchise Agreement if doing so is prevented by Act of God,

flood, storm, fire, explosions, strikes, riots, wars whether or not declared,

insurrections, epidemics, work delays caused by failure of utility providers to

service, maintain or monitor their utility poles to which Company’s Cable System

is attached, unavailability of materials and/or qualified labor to perform the work

necessary, or any law, rule or act of any court of competent jurisdiction or

instrumentality of government or any cause or event beyond the control of the Town

or the Company.

B. Severability

If any provision of this Franchise Agreement is held by any court or Federal or

State agency of competent jurisdiction to be invalid as conflicting with any Federal

or State law, rule or regulation now or hereafter in effect, or is held by such court

or agency to be modified in any way in order to conform to the requirements of any

such law, rule or regulation, said provision shall be considered a separate, distinct

and independent part of this Franchise Agreement, and such holding shall not affect

the validity and enforceability of all other provisions hereof, all of which shall

remain in full force and effect for the term of this Franchise Agreement.

C. Effect on Prior Agreements

This Franchise Agreement shall supersede any prior franchise agreements between

the parties. Immediately upon the taking effect of this Franchise Agreement, all

Formatted: Font: Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Not Highlight

Formatted: No underline, Not Highlight



41 

prior franchise agreements and any and all extensions thereof, shall terminate and 

shall have no further force and effect; provided, however, that any vested rights 

relating to billings and the Town’s rights to receive franchise fees shall not be 

affected thereby. 

D. Non-Enforcement Not Waiver

Neither party shall be excused from complying with any of the terms and conditions

of this Franchise Agreement by any failure of either party upon one or more

occasions to insist upon or to seek compliance with any such terms or conditions.

No course of dealing between the Company and the Town, nor any delay on the

part of the Town or Company in exercising any rights hereunder, shall operate as a

waiver of any such rights of the Town or Company or acquiescence in the actions

of the Company or the Town in contravention of such right, except to the extent

expressly waived by either party or expressly provided for in this Franchise

Agreement. No decision by the Town or Company to invoke any remedy under this

Franchise Agreement or under any statute, law or ordinance shall preclude the

availability of any other such remedy.  This provision does not extend any

applicable statute of limitations.

E. Company Warranties

Company warrants, represents and acknowledges that, as of the Execution Date of

this Franchise Agreement:

1. The Company is duly authorized to do business under the laws of the State;

2. The Company has the requisite power and authority under applicable law

and its bylaws and articles of incorporation and/or other organizational

documents, is authorized by resolutions of its Board of Directors or other

governing body, and has secured all consents which are required to be

obtained as of the execution date of this Franchise Agreement, to enter into

and legally bind Company to this Franchise Agreement and to take all

actions necessary to perform all of its obligations pursuant to this Franchise

Agreement;

3. This Franchise Agreement is enforceable against Company in accordance

with the provisions herein; and

4. There is no action or proceedings pending or threatened against Company

that would interfere with performance of this Franchise Agreement.



42 

Execution 

Signatures: 

Date: ___________________, 20223 TOWN OF LYMAN, MAINE 

By:___________________________________  

Its: Selectman 

By:___________________________________  

Its: Selectman 

By:___________________________________  

Its: Selectman 

Date: ____________________, 20232 

Spectrum Northeast, LLC 

LKA By Charter Communications, Inc., Its 

Manager 

Signature: 

Name/Title: 

Formatted: No underline, Not Highlight

Formatted: No underline



43 

EXHIBIT A 

CABLE SERVICE TO MUNICIPAL BUILDINGS 

Lyman Town Hall 11 S Waterboro Rd 

Lyman Town Library 10 John Street 

Goodwins Mills Fire Department 481 Goodwins Mill Road 

Cousens Memorial School 382 Goodwins Mills Road 

Lyman Elementary School 39 Schoolhouse Road 

Formatted: Centered



ITEM#6: (d.) Expense Report 2/2/2023





















To:  Town of Lyman Selectboard 

From: Budget Committee 

Feburary 2, 2023 

The Budget Committee met on January 19, 2023 for the purpose of reviewing the previous quarter 

budget figures.  The budget committees was able to receive answers to all questions asked of the 

treasurer and are satisfied with where things stand at the end of the second quarter.  

Respectfully submitted, 

Amber Swett 

Vice Chair 

ITEM#6: (h.) Budget Committee - Quarterly Report



TRANSFER STATION

Replace 3 retaining walls by the wood and metal cans and add a new wall to 
replace the old rock wall by the office. All new walls will be 12” thick 
retaining wall pours.   $32,275.00

Excavation for all for new walls and backfilled and compacted ready for new 
paving. $13,000.00

Pave the disturbed areas by the new walls and place 2” of base pavement 
and 2” of surface and pave the gravel hill and flat area by the lower trash 
compactors. $25,200.00

Replace the steel support pcs and replace all the anchor bolts on the 
compactors and add new Diamond plates in front of the 2 trash 
compactors. $12,000.00

Lighting improvements on the upper area in various locations and upgrade 
the salt shed lighting.  Add Cat 6 cable to the office $24,450.00

Remove and replace 5 canopies, 2 over the wood bin and 1 over the metal 
bin and 2 over the recycling compactors.        $30,000.00

Add up to 5 new cameras around the transfer station. $4,500.00

Pour a new slab below the end of the yard area where the appliances are 
stored. $3,000.00

Add new protective railings on all the new retaining walls and cast in place 
pockets. $5,500.00

Sand blast and repaint the backhoe $9,500.00

Replace 2 retaining walls at the Salt shed $9,000.00

Total        $168,425.00

BUNGANUT BEACH

Shed for equipment. $3,000.00

Network devices.
  Computer Rack (enclosed with fan capabilities) $225.00

   Ubiquiti Router $450.00
24-port POE Switch $650.00

  UPS $250.00

A.R.P.A. Committee Recommended  Projects
(cost are estimates)

Page 1 of 3

ITEM#7: (c.) ARPA Committee recommendations 



   Camera's (4) $1,800.00
   Additional Cabling $5,000.00

  10G Drive (instant video storage) $400.00

Power to water pump $9,500.00

Pump constant pressure system $27,450.00

Shed for pump tank or decorative rock
Shed $3,000.00
Rock $450.00

Gravel for top parking lot and secondary lot $5,000.00

Replace approximately 100 ft of walking bridge $8,500.00

Concrete Pads for picnic tables.  Add 4 new tables and 1 handicap $7,500.00

Total        $73,175.00

BUNGANUT BALLFIELD

Remove stumps & rocks right hand side of gate, Grade & add fill $25,000.00

Gravel new parking area $10,000.00

Finish fencing for child safety approx 150 and the parking area approx 300 ft $7,500.00

Move rocks in parking area back 20ft and grass $1,000.00

Six load of loam to finish grass areas on banking and in front of rock wall $2,400.00

Add a Well, and drinking water for the concession stand $20,000.00

Removal of dangerous trees If money is available

Improvements to Bunganut building If money is available

Playground equipment If money is available

Lean - to for vending machines If money is available

Total $65,900.00

KENNEBUNK POND

Parking lot redesign: $19,890.00 (5,410 coming from reserve account)

Beach side: Plantings, ADA access $39,490.00 see sketch

Page 2 of 3



Gate system with entry & exit gates, including card reader (does not include 
excavation, internet or router costs - if town cameras are installed, can plug into 
that network) $17,304.00 see sketch

Excavate & cover trench for gate wiring $1,000.00

Cameras & installation w/feed to Town Hall $2,000.00 Pending information from the town

Design & Technical Development, Construction Documentation, & Construction 
Administration - SOLE SOURCE $6,795.00

Refund from state for ADA access ($10,000.00)

Total        $76,479.00

GRAND TOTAL $383,979.00

Page 3 of 3



As of 01/31/2023

REVENUE
9/30/21 238,533.29

1/4/22 277.13
6/24/22 238,810.43

Total 477,620.85

EXPENSE

3/21/22 (6,839.73) SCBA
5/5/22 (18,348.00) SCBA
5/5/22 (81,720.00) SCBA
5/5/22 (2,998.50) SCBA

10/17/22 (1,611.71) Stryker
12/5/22 (10,981.39) Stryker
1/17/23 (9,979.18) Stryker
1/17/23 (9,068.80) Stryker

Encumbered (14,899.51) Stryker

Total (156,446.82)

INTEREST
FY 2022 468.64
FY 23 YTD 188.39
Total 657.03

GRAND TOTAL 321,831.06

ARPA FUND BALANCE



davidm
aynes  

LAN
D

S
C

APE AR
C

H
ITEC

TU
R

E & D
ES

IG
N

w
w

w
.davidm

aynesstudio.com

K
EN

N
EBU

N
K

 PO
N

D
 BEAC

H
 

REFIN
ED M

ASTER PLAN
 - FO

R REVIEW

January 25, 2023
LYM

AN
, M

E.



Kennebunk Pond Beach LANDSCAPE  - REFINED MASTER PLAN - BEACH RP1

8’0’ 16’ 32’24’

Scale: 1’=8’-0” 
Original Drawing Size: 24“x36”
Original Issue Date: 1/25/2023

davidmaynes  
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE & DESIGN
www.davidmaynesstudio.com

U
P

30" W
hite Pine

Shed

U
P 12

U
P 11

O
.U

.
O

.U
.

20" O
ak

20" M
aple

Wire fence

W
ire fence

W
ater Bar

Sign

Tw
in 6" A

sh

G
ate

Post
G

ate
Post

Gravel  Walk  Way

B
each A

rea

Row of Rocks

Landscape Shrubs
Landscape Shrubs

C
oncrete 

O
utlet Structure

B
oat R

am
p

K
ennebunk

Pond
R

oad

Steps

S11°27'19"E
150.98'

S76°33'53"E
35.82'

N
04°38'07"E

20.71'
N

05°37'07"E
50.51'

N
06°59'07"E

50.59'

N72°08'53"W

83.30'

Tie Line

C
ross

W
alk

G
uard   R

ail
G

uard   R
ail

n/f
D

aigle
B

k:3781  Pg:29
M

15-L37

N
10°04'07"E
9.41'

n/f
T

he Pines C
ondom

inium
C

ondo File #356
M

15-L38

24" C
ulvert

8.5±

Pond

K
ennebunk

line  -

apparent 
high            w

ater

Possible fip
(under pavem

ent)
229.57'

G
uy A

nchor

Invert In: 94.81'

Invert O
ut: 94.56'

24" C
ulvert

103

102

102

101

100

100

99

99

99

99

98

98

97

97

97

96

96

96

96

97

Outlet Brook

elevation = 95.5'±

G
ravel

48'±
50'±

13'±

EXISTIN
G

 IN
FO

R
M

ATIO
N

 K
IO

SK

TIM
BER

 G
U

AR
D

 R
AIL

TR
ASH

 & R
EC

YC
LIN

G
 

2.5%
  R

     A     M
     P

TIM
BER

 G
U

AR
D

 R
AIL

U
N

IFO
R

M
 SU

R
FAC

IN
G

 - AD
A

EXISTIN
G

 BO
U

LD
ER

S

AC
C

ESS STEPS (4)

R
ETAIN

IN
G

 BO
U

LD
ER

S
SALVAG

E FRO
M

 SITE. FINAL Q
TY

TBD IN FIELD

ALT A: STO
NE 4’L x12”T x 6”R - STACKED

ALT B: W
O

O
D/TIM

BER

D
ETEC

TABLE W
AR

N
IN

G
 PLATES

TO
 M

EET M
AINE DO

T SPECIFICATIO
NS

X-W
ALK

 SIG
N

AL PO
LE

FINAL LO
CATIO

N TBD IN CO
O

RDINATIO
N w

/M
AINE DO

T

X-W
ALK

 SIG
N

AL PO
LE

FINAL LO
CATIO

N TBD IN CO
O

RDINATIO
N w

/M
AINE DO

T

ALT A: BLACK LO
CUST W

O
O

D PAVERS
ALT B: TIM

BER DECKING
 O

N SLEEPER ASSEM
BLY

U
N

IFO
R

M
 SU

R
FAC

IN
G

 - AD
A

ALT A: BLACK LO
CUST W

O
O

D PAVERS
ALT B: TIM

BER DECKING
 O

N SLEEPER ASSEM
BLY

TO
 BE BURIED M

IN 3’, w
/FLO

W
ABLE FILL

M
O

N
O

LITH
IC

 STO
N

E BLO
C

K

M
O

N
O

LITH
IC

 STO
N

E BLO
C

K

2.5%
  R

     A     M
     P

N
ATIVE

PLAN
TIN

G

TO
 REM

AIN

TO
 REM

AIN

PENDING
 DO

T REVIEW
 & APPRO

VAL
DEDUCT ALT: NEW

 STEEL W
-CHANNEL

30” TALL STO
N

E BO
LLAR

D

N
O

T FO
R

 C
O

N
STR

U
C

TIO
N

. FO
R

 PR
ELIM

IN
ARY PLAN

N
IN

G
 PU

R
PO

SES O
N

LY

PRO
PO

SED CO
NTO

UR

EXISTING
 CO

NTO
UR

PRO
PO

SED SPO
T ELEVATIO

N

LEG
EN

D
 - PRELIM

IN
ARY G

RADIN
G

EX. G
U

AR
D

 R
AIL

EX. AC
C

ESS
STEPS

PENDING
 DO

T REVIEW
 & APPRO

VAL

99

100

99

100

 + 100.0
+

99.5
99.0 +

 + 98.0 BS

99.0

99.0

100.0

101

101

98

98

+
100.0 TS

XX.X

XX

+
XX.X



Kennebunk Pond Beach LANDSCAPE  - REFINED MASTER PLAN - PARKING RP2

10’0’ 20’ 40’30’

Scale: 1’=10’-0” 
Original Drawing Size: 24“x36”
Original Issue Date: 1/25/2023

davidmaynes  
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE & DESIGN
www.davidmaynesstudio.com

U
P

30" W
hite Pine

Shed

Shed

U
P 12

U
P 11

O
.U

.
O

.U
.

20" O
ak

20" M
aple

Wire fence

W
ire fence

A
round Porta potty

W
ater Bar

Sign

Tw
in 6" A

sh

G
ate

Post
G

ate
Post

Gravel  Walk  Way

B
each A

rea

Row of Rocks

Landscape Shrubs
Landscape Shrubs

C
oncrete 

O
utlet Structure

B
oat R

am
p

K
ennebunk

Pond
R

oad

G
ravel Parking Lot

Steps

S76°33'53"E
35.82'

N
04°38'07"E

20.71'
N

05°37'07"E
50.51'

N
06°59'07"E

50.59'

C
ross

W
alk

C
hain Link Fence 

G
uard   R

ail
G

uard   R
ail

N
10°04'07"E
9.41'

24" C
ulvert

1" fip
buried 4"

Possible fip
(under pavem

ent)
229.57'

G
uy A

nchor

Invert In: 94.81'

Invert O
ut: 94.56'

24" C
ulvert

103

103

103

102

102

102

102

102

101

101

100

100

100

99

98

9796

96

97

Outlet Brook

48'±
50'±

13'±

R
ELO

C
ATE EX. PO

RT A PO
TTY

SALVAG
E FLU

SH
 G

R
AN

ITE ‘APR
O

N
’

TO
 BE BURIED M

IN 3’, w
/FLO

W
ABLE FILL

30” TALL STO
N

E BO
LLAR

D

D
ETEC

TABLE W
AR

N
IN

G
 PLATES

TO
 M

EET M
AINE DO

T SPECIFICATIO
NS

C
O

M
PAC

TED
 STO

N
ED

U
ST SU

R
FAC

IN
G

TO
 BE BURIED M

IN 3’, w
/FLO

W
ABLE FILL

(16)36” TALL TIM
BER

 BO
LLAR

D
, TYP.

BO
AT TR

AILER
 PAR

K
IN

G

VISITO
R

 PAR
K

IN
G

 (8)

VISITO
R

 PAR
K

IN
G

 (7)
R

AIN
G

AR
D

EN
 - PLAN

TED
 ISLAN

D

R
E-G

R
AD

E & R
E-U

SE EXISTIN
G

 G
R

AVEL SU
R

FAC
IN

G
FINAL G

RADING
 TBD IN FIELD

1%
 M

IN SLO
PE TO

 RAING
ARDEN

1%
 M

IN SLO
PE TO

 RAING
ARDEN

(3)N
ATIVE D

EC
ID

U
O

U
S SH

AD
E TR

EES

(1)N
ATIVE D

EC
ID

U
O

U
S

SH
AD

E TR
EE

R
O

TATE EX. SH
ED

AS SH
O

W
N

EX. U
TILITY

PO
LE

1%
 M

IN SLO
PE

EX. PIN
E G

LAD
E

TO
 R

EM
AIN

 U
N

D
ISTU

R
BED

PIC
N

IC
 TABLE

PIC
N

IC
 TABLE

+
LP

+
LP

+
LP

TR
ASH

TR
ASH

N
O

T FO
R

 C
O

N
STR

U
C

TIO
N

. FO
R

 PR
ELIM

IN
ARY PLAN

N
IN

G
 PU

R
PO

SES O
N

LY

PO
W

ER
ED

 EN
TRY G

ATES

H
C

SALVAG
E BO

U
LD

ER

ASPH
ALT SU

R
FAC

IN
G

EX. W
O

O
DLAND

EX. W
O

O
DLAND

EX. W
O

O
DLAND

EX. W
O

O
DLAND



Shaded areas: Monies already spent/committed
PRIORITY ITEM DESCRIPTION EST COST BALANCE NOTES

2021-2022-2023 Budget 20,000$         Funds approved by the town.
2021 Gravel parking lot Steele Nickel #4259 777.50$         19,222.50$    
2021 Electrical pole Private Power 1,100.00$      18,122.50$    
2021 Survey property lines Middle Branch Surveyors 1,292.00$      16,830.50$    
2022 Tree Removal Gerard Tree Service 1,800.00$      15,030.50$    
2022 Shed Hill View Mini Barns 2,783.75$      12,246.75$    
2022 Electrical  ETP Electrical 2,400.00$      9,846.75$      
2022 Clear area for shed Steele Nickel 560.00$         9,286.75$      
2022 Architect David Maynes (Pending) 3,900.00$      5,386.75$      

2022 Interest 2021 Reported by Treasurer (18.72)$          5,405.47$      
2023 Interest to date 2022 (as of May 2022) Reported by Treasurer (5.18)$            5,410.65$      

Parking lot redesign: Includes 10% Contingency 25,300.00$    (19,889.35)$   See Sketch
Beach side: Plantings, ADA access Includes 10% Contingency 39,490.00$    (59,379.35)$   See Sketch
Gate system with entry & exit gates, 
including card reader (does not include 
excavation, internet or router costs - if town 
cameras are installed, can plug into that 
network)

Quote from CTR Maine 17,304.00$    (76,683.35)$   $11,000 Alternative: 1-arm gate that opens at dawn & 
closes at dusk, with no card reader (Excl excavation & 
internet/router costs. If tied into town camera system, no 
additional cost required for internet/router.

Excavate & cover trench for gate wiring Estimate 1,000.00$      (77,683.35)$   
Cameras & installation w/feed to Town Hall Estimate 2,000.00$      (79,683.35)$   Pending information from the town

Design & Technical Development, 
Construction Documentation, & 
Construction Administration - SOLE SOURCE 

David Maynes - Quoted 
with Scope of Service

6,795$            (86,478.35)$   

Refund from state for ADA access Grant from Maine DOT (10,000.00)$   (76,478.35)$  ARPA funding request - does not include any DEP/DOT 
permitting costs; assumes Permit by Rule

(70,174.35)$  With 1-arm gate alternative

Kennebunk Pond Beach Committee Budget/Priorities



ITEM#7: (f.) Assessor Training Request





ITEM#7: (h.) NIMS Training

mnikel
Line



UPCOMING TRAINING
National Incident Management System (NIMS)

OVERVIEW FOR SENIOR and elected OFFICIALS

Hosted by the Cumberland, Sagadahoc, and Lincoln
County Emergency Management Agencies

Purpose: To familiarize Senior officials (executives, elected and
appointed officials, city/county managers, agency administrators, etc.)
with their role in supporting incident management within the National
Incident Management System (NIMS). This course will discuss how
policy in your jurisdiction will affect the management of emergencies,
give an overview of Emergency Operations Centers and Incident
Command, and give a general guideline for how Senior Officials can
best support the management of a disaster of any scale.

Audience: This course is required for all senior officials for a municipality
to maintain NIMS compliance and receive certain federal funding. 

DATES (all virtual):
February 9th 9:00am-11:00am

February 16th 6:00pm-8:00pm

February 21st 1:00pm-3:00pm

March 2nd 6:00pm-8:00pm

Register here

https://forms.gle/uJHmJXde4wURU3Aw9

	Copy of KPB Cost Estimates 1-28-23.pdf
	KPB Budget Est.

	References for Job Study RFPs.pdf
	Blank Page




